Richland County, Wisconsin

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP)

For

Engineering Services

Village of Lone Rock – Village Center Park

A Community Development Block Grant

CLOSE Public Facilities (CL-PF)] Project

April 21st, 2021

Table of Contents

Invitation to Submit Proposal	3
Introduction	3
Contact Information	3
Questions Regarding This RFP	3
Addenda Interpretations	4
Scope of Services & Deliverables	4
Proposal Requirements	5
Directions for Submittal	5
Proposal Contents	6
Proposal Format	6
Selection Process Schedule	6
Other Conditions of Proposal Submittal	6
Evaluation and Selection	7
EXHIBIT I	8
Project Background and Project Area/Service Area Maps	8
EXHIBIT II	42
State and Federal Regulatory Requirements for CDBG-Assisted Projects	42
EXHIBIT III	68
Minimum Qualifications	68
EXHIBIT IV	69
Selection Rating System	69

Invitation to Submit Proposal

Introduction

Richland County, Wisconsin, and/or its designated representative is seeking proposals for consulting services relating to the Lone Rock Village Center Park Project. Richland County, WI is receiving federal funding from the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) CLOSE Program for this project. Proposals will be accepted for engineering services.

Minimum requirements include previous experience in engineering design and construction management on CDBG or similar state/federally funded projects. Proposals will be accepted from individuals, firms, or groups of firms with the demonstrated expertise and experience in these areas of practice.

Contact Information

To request additional information or to request an RFP packet please contact Jasen Glasbrenner, Richland Economic Development, between the hours of 9:00AM to 4:00pm, Monday - Thursday at 608-649-5961 or email jasen.glasbrenner@co.richland.wi.us

Persons/firms that intend to submit a proposal should send notification of intent to Richland Economic Development with the person's/firm's name and contact information in case of addenda or other changes. Additionally, the RFP may be sent to those persons/firms that are included on the Richland County's persons/firms list that is specifically created for this RFP. Those who Richland Economic Development has sent an RFP and those who have provided contact information through a request for a copy of the RFP or through a notification of intent will receive all information regarding the RFP. The information may include, but is not limited to, any amendments to the RFP, answers to inquiries received regarding the RFP, or changes to the RFP schedule.

Questions Regarding This RFP

This solicitation contains a description of the project and services required. Interested proposers have the responsibility of understanding what is required by this solicitation. During the review of the RFP, if the Proposer discovers any errors, omissions or ambiguities within the RFP, they should identify them in writing and call them to the immediate attention of Jasen Glasbrenner - Richland Economic Development prior to the RFP submission deadline. Richland County, WI and Richland Economic Development shall not be held responsible for any person's/firm's lack of understanding of the project.

Questions for clarification concerning this RFP must be in writing and emailed to Jasen Glasbrenner, Director - Richland Economic Development, at <u>jasen.glasbrenner@co.richland.wi.us</u> on or before Tuesday, May 11th, 2021. After this date, questions involving the content or intent of the proposal will not be answered. All questions will be responded to by Jasen Glasbrenner, Director - Richland Economic Development, in writing via email, and provided to all parties requesting an RFP for which the Richland Economic Development has the contact information, and treated as an addendum to the RFP packet.

Richland County, WI makes no representations as to the conditions of the project other than those representations made herein, and no employee or any other representative of Richland County, WI has the

authority to make any oral or written representations as to the conditions of the project. Persons/firms should only contact the person designated above regarding this RFP and should not contact any Richland County or Village of Lone Rock board members, committee members, or any other County or Village of Lone Rock staff for clarification on this RFP.

Addenda Interpretations

If it becomes necessary to revise any part of this RFP, a written addendum will be provided. Richland County and Richland Economic Development is not bound by any oral clarifications changing the scope of the work for this project. All addenda issued by the Richland County will become part of the official RFP and will be emailed to all proposers of record based upon contact information on record at the original time of issuance or subsequently provided.

Scope of Services & Deliverables

Richland County, WI has applied for federal funding from the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program for the Lone Rock Village Center Park Public Facilities Project.

The focus of the public facilities project will be to purchase land along the main corridor of the community and to develop it into an open space park. Project to include demolition of buildings, and redevelopment of the land into an open space park by adding topsoil, and seeding to establish green space. New sidewalk will replace existing sidewalk in the park and north of the park for better access to the community for the Village of Lone Rock in Richland County, Wisconsin.

Village of Lone Rock Community & Project Area Description:

The Village of Lone Rock is a small community in Richland County with a population of 881 individuals. The project location is located along Commercial Street/133 at 102 E Union Street and the surrounding area; the sidewalk will be replaced two blocks north to E. DR B Reynolds Street see *Exhibits I* for location map.

Project Background:

Background information materials and a Project Area/Service Area Map for the proposed Lone Rock Village Center Park Project location are provided in **Exhibit I** attachments.

Engineering Services

Refer to the project background. The selected person(s)/firm(s) will conduct activities for and complete an engineering project, including the following:

- Prepare and provide project design plans and scope documents;
- Provide preliminary cost estimates for the demolition of existing buildings and sidewalk, construction of new sidewalk and landscaping/restoration as shown on the attached map;
- Review of environmental assessment materials required for state and federal environmental regulatory compliance;
- Preparation of permit applications;
- Provide bidding plans and documents;
- Assist with bidding and preparation of contract documents;
- Construction contract administration;

- Construction staking and observation;
- Attending Village of Lone Rock Village Board meetings as necessary for the CDBG Project: and
- Complying with CDBG regulations and policies applicable to the Project.

Final plans, specifications and bid documents will be completed within 60 days of the Notice to Proceed. Procurement of said services shall be in accordance with State and Federal regulations applicable to CDBG Projects.

All work to be undertaken as part of this proposed program must be undertaken in accordance with the Federal Code of Federal Regulations, including but not limited to 24 CFR, Part 570 and 24 CFR, Part 58; and other applicable State and Federal requirements. Federal requirements for CDBG projects regarding Conflict of Interest, Lobbying, Federal Labor Standards Provisions (4010), Davis-Bacon and Related Acts, Equal Opportunity/EO 11246, Minority Business Enterprise/Women Business Enterprise (MBE-WBE) and Section 3 are provided in **Exhibit II** attachments included with this RFP. The project may also include Acquisition and Relocation activities, which are subject to the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Act (URA). Applicable requirements must be met by the selected entity for this RFP, and any entities awarded a contract or subcontract for the CDBG Project.

Proposal Requirements

Directions for Submittal

Proposals must be received at the Richland Economic Development Office. Direct submittals to Jasen Glasbrenner, Director - Richland Economic Development, Labeled "ATTN: Lone Rock Village Center Park – CDBG Close Project", 450 South Main Street, Richland Center, WI 53581; or via email to jasen.glasbrenner@co.richland.wi.us with the Subject of "ATTN Lone Rock Village Center Park – CDBG Close Project", no later than 4pm on Friday, May 14, 2021. Richland County and Richland Economic Development reserve the right to reject any and all Proposals not meeting the requirements of this Request for Proposals for consulting services.

Persons requesting ADA assistance accommodations for hearing and speech impaired may contact Jasen Glasbrenner, Director – Richland Economic Development at 608-649-5961 or jasen.glasbrenner@co.richland.wi.us

Individuals/firms interested in being considered for this project must submit a proposal detailing qualifications, technical expertise, management and staff capabilities, related prior experience, and a detailed cost estimate for the Scope of Services described above. The objective of the competitive process is to objectively select the firm that will provide high-quality, efficient, and cost-effective services. The selected person(s)/firm(s) will be invited to contract with Richland County, WI for consulting services.

Exhibit III, attached to this RFP, represents the qualifications sought for the engineering consulting services. These criteria have been established to assure the Community of professional expertise with adequate experience and capacity to ensure successful completion of the proposed project within the allocated time constraints.

Exhibit IV, attached hereto, is a Rating System that will be utilized for selection of the consultant. This rating system will be employed by the community in determining which proposal best meets the needs as outlined in this RFP.

Proposal Format

The proposal must be submitted in typed format with the items to be included in the proposal placed in the same order as described in above. The proposal must be signed by the submitter or authorized representative and dated. The pages of the proposal must be numbered in consecutive order and should not exceed the maximum sheet size of 8.5" x 11." The name, mailing address, phone number and email address of the Proposer should be placed in the upper left corner on the cover page of the Proposal.

Proposal Contents

- 1. Cover Letter.
- 2. Project scope statement describing the work to be undertaken, include the services outlined in the RFP, and any modifications or expansion of the scope provided in order to deliver the engineering consulting services.
- 3. Project work plan indicating mechanisms proposed to coordinate the work effort with Richland County, the Village of Lone Rock and the Grant Administrator.
- 4. Proposer's profile and a clear concise statement with:
 - a. Examples indicating past performance and familiarity with the type of work detailed in the RFP
 - b. Examples of implementation of the Proposer's work/services in other communities and noted successes
 - c. A list of client references for which Proposer provided similar services as described in the RFP.
- 5. Project team statement indicating the professional and technical qualifications of the key persons who will be assigned to the project and their responsibilities within the Scope of Services. Resumes for key personnel should be included in the proposal appendices.
- 6. Project budget with estimated level of effort for each member of the team and for each major task.
- 7. Fee schedule for personnel involved with the project.
- 8. Copy of professional services agreement.

Selection Process Schedule

Richland County, WI anticipates authorizing a contract for this work no later than June 2021 with a notice to proceed no later than June 2021. The scope of services will take place over a twelve-month period. Richland County's preference is to have the Village Center Park Public Facilities project completed no later than June 2022. Responding persons/firms should comment on the above schedule as part of their proposal and state how realistic it is to achieve substantial completion of the work by June 2022.

Other Conditions of Proposal Submittal

- 1. Only one proposal will be accepted from any person, firm or entity.
- 2. No proposal will be accepted from any person, firm or entity that is in arrears for any obligation to Richland County or the Village of Lone Rock, is debarred from contracting for federally funded projects, or that otherwise may be deemed irresponsible or unresponsive by Richland County and the Village of Lone Rock, Village Board or Village of Lone Rock staff.
- 3. All Proposals submitted become public information and may be reviewed by anyone requesting to do so at the conclusion of the evaluation process.
- 4. Requirements and conditions of employment and contracting to be observed for compliance with Conflict of Interest, Lobbying, and Section 3, Affirmative Action, Equal Opportunity, Minority-

Business Enterprise/Women Business Enterprise (MBE/WBE), Federal Labor Standards, and Davis-Bacon and Related Acts (DBRA)] regulations apply to this project.

Refer to **Exhibit II** attachments for the CDBG Project requirements.

Evaluation and Selection

Final selection of the engineering services provider will be based upon the maximum total points scored as set forth in the Rating System in **Exhibit IV**.

Richland County, WI reserves the right to negotiate a contract with the services provider selected to perform the professional services required.

Richland County, WI reserves the right to reject any and all responses submitted. If you have any questions regarding this Request for Proposals, please contact:

Jasen Glasbrenner Director – Richland Economic Development jasen.glasbrenner@co.richland.wi.us 608-649-5961

EXHIBIT I

Project Background and Project Area/Service Area Maps

CDBG CLOSE Grant Application Village Center Park Village of Lone Rock, Wisconsin

Prepared For: Richland County 181 West Seminary Street Richland Center, WI 53581

Prepared By: Vierbicher 400 Viking Drive Reedsburg, WI 53959

© 2021 Vierbicher Associates, Inc



STATE OF WISCONSIN

Department of Administration



Community Development Block Grant CLOSE – Public Facilities (CDBG CL-PF)

Grant Application

Revised 04/17/2019



Wisconsin Department of Administration Division of Energy, Housing and Community Resources

Community Development Block Grant CLOSE Public Facilities (CDBG CL-PF) Grant Application

	PART 1 - GRANT REQU	EST
Grant Request Amount: \$ 481,750	Other Funding, if applicable: \$ 0.00	Total Project Cost: \$ 481,750
Project Scope:	Community-Wide	Neighborhood, District, or Site-Specific
Project Title: Village of Lon	e Rock Village Center Park	
community, demolish	ne Village will purchase land of a bligh buildings, and redevelop the land into rk and north of the park for better acce	
If Project receives CDBG fur Project Begin Date		ect Completion Date (MM/YY): _05/

PART 2 -	APPLICANT INFO	RMATION	
APPLICANT (Unit of General Local Governme	ent [UGLG]): Richland	d County	Population: 17,746
UGLG Type: City Village	🗌 Town 🛛	County	County: Richland
Senate District #: 17	Assembl	y District #: 51	
Joint Application? No Yes (If yes,	list other unit[s] of gov	vernment):	
Chief Elected Official (CEO): Marty Brewer		1	Title: County Board Chair
Clerk: Victor V. Vlasak			Title: Clerk
Municipal Administrator: Clint Langreck			Title: Administrator
Treasurer/Finance Director: Julie Keller			Title: Treasurer
UGLG Street Address: 181 West Seminary	Street		
UGLG Mailing Address if different than above	e:		
City: Richland Center Zip: 5	3581	DUNS #	: 082807454
UGLG Phone: (608) 6495961_ UGLG Fax: (608) 647 FEIN: 39-6005735		39-6005735	
UGLG E-Mail: jasen.glasbrenner@co.richla	nd.wi.us Clerk E	Mail: victor.vlasa	ak@co.richland.wi.us
If the UGLG contracted with a third party to c application preparation services: \$4,50		tion, please provid	le the contract amount for
Chief Elected Official's Signature:	Suns		Date: 1 - 28-21
V. C.	Application Contac	t	
Name: Kurt Muchow	Title:	Community De	velopment Consultant
Firm/Company/Entity: Vierbicher			

CDBG CL–PF Grant Application Revised 04/17/2019

Mailing Address: 400 Vil	king Dr		
City: Reedsburg		State: WI	Zip: 53959
Phone: (608) 402 - 6378	Fax: (608) 402	6378_	E-Mail: kmuc@vierbicher.com

			PART 3 - INITIAL ELIGIBILITY
			knowledge the following to demonstrate initial application eligibility. Contact the Bureau of
Con	nmun	ity D	evelopment if any answer in this section is "No":
Yes	No		
\boxtimes		1.	The Unit of General Local Government (UGLG) certifies that it is a non-entitlement community that does not receive CDBG funds directly from the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).
\boxtimes		2.	UGLG's adopted Citizen Participation Plan is attached.
		3.	Documentation of the first public hearing notice, verifying that the notice was published in accordance with the UGLG's <i>Citizen Participation Plan</i> in effect on the date of the first notice; and adequate advance notice was given for the public hearing in accordance with the UGLG's <i>Citizen Participation Plan</i> in effect on the date of the first notice <i>and</i> no less than the equivalent of a Class 2 Notice, is attached.
\boxtimes		4.	Citizen Participation Public Hearing Certification is attached.
\boxtimes		5.	Public Hearing Meeting Minutes [with attendees listed in the Minutes or on separate sign-in sheet(s) provided] are attached.
\boxtimes		6.	Authorizing Resolution to Submit CDBG Application is attached.
Ø		7.	Statement of Assurances is attached.
		8.	Lobbying Certification is attached.
\boxtimes		9.	Potential Fair Housing Actions checklist is attached.
\boxtimes		10.	The UGLG acknowledges that if the project is funded, the UGLG will be required to complete the environmental review process before the UGLG can receive grant funds.
		11.	The UGLG acknowledges that if this project is funded, Professional Services for Grant Administration will be properly procured in compliance with Federal, State, and local requirements.
\boxtimes		12.	The UGLG understands that the contract for professional services is between the UGLG and the professional services provider; the State is <u>not</u> responsible or a part of that relationship.
		13.	The UGLG acknowledges responsibility for ensuring that CDBG contract requirements are met. The fees paid for grant application preparation and grant administration may be published on DEHCR's web page.
\boxtimes		14.	The UGLG certifies it is not debarred from receiving federal grant funds.
			The UGLG understands that incomplete applications may be denied before review and denial of incomplete applications <u>cannot</u> be appealed.
_	M	22	By initialing, the Chief Elected Official (CEO) certifies that the eligibility information noted above is complete and accurate.
			Contact the Bureau of Community Development if any answer in this section is "No."

	F	PART 4 - CDBG NATIONAL OBJECTIVE AND PROJECT BENEFICIARIES
1.	Will th _ _	e proposed project benefit the entire community? Yes No How many total individuals will benefit from the project? <u>881</u> Of those who will benefit, how many individuals meet the qualification of LMI? <u>500</u>
2.		CDBG National Objective does your proposed project meet and which method(s) was/were o demonstrate National Objective compliance? (Answer using the checkboxes below.)
	\boxtimes	Benefit to Low- and Moderate-Income Persons
		Area Benefit using HUD Local Government LMI Summary Data (only for projects having community-wide benefit or having primary benefit to multiple entire communities)
		Area Benefit using HUD Census Block LMI Summary Data (only for projects with a service area that is coterminous with one or more census blocks)
		Area Benefit using Income Survey Data (for projects for which an income survey was conducted to determine the LMI percentage of the service area)
		Area Benefit using combination of HUD LMI Summary Data and Income Survey Data (for projects for which the LMI percentage calculation for the total service area was made by using the aggregate totals for the population and number of LMI persons from a combination of HUD LMISD for part of the service area and income survey data for the rest of the service area)
		Limited Clientele - HUD presumed group:
		Prevention/Elimination of Slum and Blight
		Area Basis (Attach a completed Slum and Blight Certification Form and supporting documents including a map of service area)
		Spot Basis (Attach a completed Slum and Blight Certification Form and supporting documents including a map of service area)
		 Urgent Local Need (ULN) HUD's regulation found at 24 CFR 570.483 (d) and policy guidance in meeting a National Objective states that to qualify under the Urgent Local Need Objective the project activity must alleviate conditions that meet <u>all</u> of the following criteria: Pose a serious and immediate threat to the health or welfare of the community; and Are of recent origin or which recently became urgent, meaning that the conditions developed or became critical within 18 months preceding the certification; and The local government is unable to finance the activity on its own, and other sources of funding are not available to carry out the activity. Please note: Additionally, HUD's guide to "<i>Meeting a National Objective</i>" states planning grants are not allowed under the Urgent Local Need objective and activities designated solely
		to <i>prevent</i> a threat <u>will not qualify</u> . Provide justification below. (Insert Text Here.)

PART 5 – PROJECT DESCRIPTION NARRATIVE (2 Pages Max.)

1. Current condition of the problem:

(The buildings and grounds are located at 102 E Union Street Lone Rock, WI. This location is in the downtown corridor and along the main corridor of the Village. The property is blighted, in disrepair, and not maintained at a level that is conducive to creating an attractive downtown area. The business that occupies the space, Ewers Construction – a commercial excavation and demolition company, while important to Lone Rock, does not represent a business type that is appropriate for the downtown corridor. Because of the blighted property it is extremely difficult to promote the Village of Lone Rock downtown area to potential new businesses. This stifles the likelihood of new businesses locating nearby or even new residents wanting to live in the Village

Additionally, the Village lacks open park space, which is a concern for the community. Access to parks and open space is an important for quality of life in communities. Parks and open space improve our health, strengthen our community, and make our communities more attractive places to live and work.)

2. Frequency with which the problem occurs:

The current business has been there for many years with little maintenance over the years. The blight is consistent and can be seen daily by residents and travelers. The Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) completed in 2018 for Richland County identifies several barriers to economic development. Those barriers include blight and lack of parks.)

3. Number of persons and/or households affected by the problem: The current blight and lack of adequate park space impacts the entire community, which has a population of 881.)

4. Effect(s) of the problem if left untreated:

If left untreated, the parcel will continue to have a blighting influence on the community, plus impact our ability to attract new businesses to the community. Additionally, residents will not be able to enjoy additional green space, which is a major factor in health and happiness.

5. Extent to which this proposed CDBG CL-PF project will address the problem:

The proposed project will move the property into Village ownership, will remove all blighted buildings, and create a Village Center Park. It will also install new sidewalk for a substantial distance north of the park. These project elements will greatly improve the attractiveness of the downtown area of Lone Rock increasing the desire of people to spend time there and the likelihood of new businesses locating nearby. By accomplishing this project the Village will remedy blight and create more park space.)

6. Scope of work:

The Village will purchase land of a blighted parcel along the main corridor of the community, demolish buildings, and redevelop the land into a park. Top soil will be added along with grading and seeding to establish green space. New sidewalk will be constructed in the park and north of the park for better access to the community. The Village has a signed offer to purchase the property for \$178,000 plus \$5,000 for closing costs.)

7. Extent to which CDBG Close funding is needed to complete the project:

Lone Rock, like many small rural villages, has difficulty attracting people to their community. This reality contributes to financial hardships for Village government. This CDBG CLOSE Grant will fund 100% of the proposed project and will serve as a great improvement to the community. Without this program is it highly unlikely that Lone Rock would be able to advance their community in the areas that are addressed)

FINANCIAL ATTACHMENTS AND SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Attach this cover page, followed by the documents in the order listed below, to the end of the Application <u>after</u> the Citizen Participation attachment(s).

Attachment(s):

 Detailed Itemization of Project Costs (including applicable supporting documentation for the Budget in Part 6 of this application; e.g., engineer's estimate or similar itemization of costs to verify the costs listed in the Budget) – Required for <u>ALL</u> applicants

CDBG-CLOSE PROJECT BUDGET

CONTRACT #:

(enter only after award)

GRANTEE: Richland County

DATE:

1 / 29 / 2021

ACTIVITY	CDBG CLOSE FUNDS	MATCH FUNDS (if applicable)	TOTAL COSTS (by Activity)	
Acquisition - Land	\$ 183,000.00	\$-	\$ 183,000.00	
Acquisition - Building(s)	\$-	\$ -	\$ -	
Building Improvements		\$	\$ -	
Center/Facility Construction	\$-	\$ -	\$ -	
Public Services	\$-	\$ -	\$ -	
Clearance - Site	\$ 152,400.00	\$ -	\$ 152,400.00	
Curb and Gutter	\$-	\$-	\$-	
Electrical System Improvements	\$-	\$-	\$-	
Environmental Remediation	\$-	\$-	\$-	
Equipment		\$-	\$-	
Fire Station	\$-	\$ -	\$-	
Relocation	\$-	\$-	\$-	
Sanitary Sewer	\$-	\$-	\$-	
Storm Sewer	\$-	\$-	\$-	
Street(s)/Sidewalk(s)	\$ 72,400.00	\$-	\$ 72,400.00	
Wastewater Treatment Facility	\$-	\$-	\$-	
Water	\$-	\$-	\$-	
Fixtures	\$-	\$-	\$-	
Furnishings		\$-	\$-	
Engineering	\$ 56,200.00	\$-	\$ 56,200.00	
Grant Administration	\$ 17,750.00	\$-	\$ 17,750.00	
Sub-Total(s):	\$ 481,750.00	\$-	\$ 481,750.00	

Continued on the next page.

Division of Ene	rgy, Housing and Community Reso	urces (DEHCR)				
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program		gram CONTRACT #:				
			(Ente	er only afte	r Award)	
GRANTEE:	Richland County	DATE:	1	/ 29	2021	
-						

Summarize the non-CLOSE Match Funding sources and amounts for this CDBG project:

Source:	Amount:	\$ 0.00	Status:	Pending	Committed Other
				Applied	Secured/Awarded
Source:	Amount:	\$ 0.00	Status:	Pending	Committed Other
				Applied	Secured/Awarded
Source:	Amount:	\$ 0.00	Status:	Pending	Committed Other
				Applied	Secured/Awarded
Source:	Amount:	\$ 0.00	Status:	Pending	Committed Other
				Applied	Secured/Awarded
Source:	Amount:	\$ 0.00	Status:	Pending	Committed Other
				Applied	Secured/Awarded

For any source with a status of "Other" provide a brief explanation (no more than a one-sentence narrative per source).

(Insert Text Here)

Documentation to verify that <u>all</u> matching funds have been secured must be submitted to DEHCR prior to the Grant Agreement being executed, upon award and acceptance of award.

Does the UGLG anticipate using CDBG funds to pay for Grant Administration or any other professional services associated with this project?

X Yes If yes, the services must be competitively procured in accordance with state and federal CDBG requirements set forth in Chapter 3 of the CDBG Implementation Handbook, and meet the UGLG's local procurement policy

No If no, the services must be secured using a process that is in compliance with the UGLG's local procurement policy.

Approv 03-1-1

5 6

7

12 _ 13

14 15

16

17

18 19

20

21 22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33 34

38 39

40

41 42 43

44 45 46

47

WB-15 COMMERCIAL OFFER TO PURCHASE

LICENSEE DRAFTING THIS OFFER ON	December 15, 2020	[DATE] IS (ACENT OF BUYER
	YER AND SELLER) STRIKE THOSE NOT APPLICABLE	
GENERAL PROVISIONS The Buyer, Village of		
	ers to purchase the Property known as [Street Address] 102	
<u>#146-1028-0100</u>	in the	Village
of Lone Rock		ichland , Wisconsi
	286 or attach as an addendum per line 479), on the following	terms:
PURCHASE PRICE: <u>One Hundred Seventy-E</u> :		
EARNEST MONEY of \$ N/A	Dolla	ırs (\$ <u>178,000.00</u>)
mailed, or commercially or personally delivered within	accompanies this Otier and earnest money of \$ M/A	will be _ days of acceptance to listing broker o
	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
 THE BALANCE OF PURCHASE PRICE will be paid in ca INCLUDED IN PURCHASE PRICE: Seller is includin not excluded at lines 20-22, and the following additional item 	g in the purchase price the Property, all Fixtures on th	e Property on the date of this Offe
All personal property included in purchase price will be trans	ferred by bill of sale or <u>None</u>	
	hal property to be removed by close.	Personal Property to
	eller. Property to be free and clear	
trash etc.		
CAUTION: Identify trade fixtures owned by tenant,	if applicable, and Fixtures that are on the Property	(see lines 303-310) to be excluded
by Seller or which are rented and will continue to be ow	ned by the lessor.	
NOTE: The terms of this Offer, not the listing contract of	r marketing materials, determine what items are included/	excluded.
ACCEPTANCE Acceptance occurs when all Buyers a	nd Sellers have signed one copy of the Offer, or separ	ate but identical copies of the Offer
CAUTION: Deadlines in the Offer are commonly acceptance provide adequate time for <u>both</u> binding acce	calculated from acceptance. Consider whether sheptance and performance.	ort term deadlines running fron
BINDING ACCEPTANCE This Offer is binding upon January 11, 2	both Parties only if a copy of the accepted Offer 2021 Seller may kee	•
secondary offers after binding acceptance of this Offer.		
CAUTION: This Offer may be withdrawn prior to delivery	of the accepted Offer.	
OPTIONAL PROVISIONS TERMS OF THIS OFFER	THAT ARE PRECEDED BY AN OPEN BOX () A	RE PART OF THIS OFFER ONLY IF
THE BOX IS MARKED SUCH AS WITH AN "X." THEY ARE	NOT PART OF THIS OFFER IF MARKED "N/A" OR ARE LE	T BLANK.
DELIVERY OF DOCUMENTS AND WRITTEN NOTICES	Unless otherwise stated in this Offer, delivery of del	ocuments and written notices to a
Party shall be effective only when accomplished by one of th		
	personally to the Party, or the Party's recipient for delivery if r	amed at line 38 or 39.
Seller's recipient for delivery (optional): Corey Ewers,	Managing Member	
Buyer's recipient for delivery (optional): Dan Quinn, M	fayor Village of Lone Rock	
(2) Fax: fax transmission of the document or written n	otice to the following telephone number:	
<u>Seller: ()</u>	Buyer: ()	
service, addressed either to the Party, or to the Party's	nt or written notice fees prepaid or charged to an recipient for delivery if named at line 38 or 39, for deliv	
	notice postage prepaid in the U.S. Mail, addressed e	ther to the Party, or to the Party's
recipient for delivery if named at line 38 or 39, for delivery to	the Party's delivery address at line 47 or 48.	
Delivery address for Seller:		

Delivery address for Buyer: 48

x (5) E-Mail: electronically transmitting the document or written notice to the Party's e-mail address, if given below at line 53 or 54. If this is a 49 50 consumer transaction where the property being purchased or the sale proceeds are used primarily for personal, family or household purposes, each consumer providing an e-mail address below has first consented electronically to the use of electronic documents, e-mail delivery and 51 electronic signatures in the transaction, as required by federal law. 52

53 E-Mail address for Seller (optional): cewers03@gmail.com

E-Mail address for Buyer (optional): tedgreenheck@driftlessareallc.com 54

PERSONAL DELIVERY/ACTUAL RECEIPT Personal delivery to, or Actual Receipt by, any named Buyer or Seller constitutes personal delivery 55 56 to, or Actual Receipt by, all Buyers or Sellers.

Driftless Area, LLC, 27128 Hwy 14 Richland Center WI 53581 Ted Greenheck Phone: (608)647-9050 Fax: (608)647-9080 Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 www.zipLogix.com **Driftless Area, LLC**

ved by the Wisconsin	Real Estate Examining Board
2 (Optional Use Date) 07-1-12 (Mandatory Use Date)

Page 2 of 9, WB-15

57	PROPERTY CONDITION REPRESENTATIONS Selier represents to Buyer that as of the date of acceptance Seller has no notice or knowledge
58	of Conditions Affecting the Property or Transaction (lines 181-215) other than those identified in Seller's disclosure report dated
59	and Real Estate Condition Report, if applicable, dated, which was/were received by Buyer prior to Buyer
60	signing this Offer and which is/are made a part of this offer by reference COMPLETE DATES OR STRIKE AS APPLICABLE and
61 62	INSERT CONDITIONS NOT ALREADY INCLUDED IN THE DISCLOSURE OR CONDITION REPORT(S).
63	CAUTION: If the Property includes 1-4 dwelling units, a Real Estate Condition Report containing the disclosures provided in Wis. Stat. §
64	709.03 may be required. Excluded from this requirement are sales of property that has never been inhabited, sales exempt from the real
65	estate transfer fee, and sales by certain court-appointed fiduciaries, (for example, personal representatives who have never occupied
66	the Property). Buyer may have rescission rights per Wis. Stat. § 709.05.
67 68	CLOSING This transaction is to be closed no later than August 1, 2021 if not sooner at the place selected by Seller, unless otherwise agreed by the Parties in writing.
69	CLOSING PRORATIONS The following items, if applicable, shall be prorated at closing, based upon date of closing values: real estate taxes,
70	rents, prepaid insurance (if assumed), private and municipal charges, property owners association assessments, fuel and <u>no other</u> .
71	
72	CAUTION: Provide basis for utility charges, fuel or other prorations if date of closing value will not be used.
73 74	Any income, taxes or expenses shall accrue to Seller, and be prorated at closing, through the day prior to closing.
74 75	Real estate taxes shall be prorated at closing based on [CHECK BOX FOR APPLICABLE PRORATION FORMULA]: x The net general real estate taxes for the preceding year, or the current year if available (Net general real estate taxes are defined as
76	general property taxes after state taxes not interpreceding year, of the current year in available (iver general real estate taxes are defined as general property taxes after state tax credits and lottery credits are deducted) (NOTE: THIS CHOICE APPLIES IF NO BOX IS CHECKED)
77	N/A Current assessment times current mill rate (current means as of the date of closing)
78	N/A Sale price, multiplied by the municipality area-wide percent of fair market value used by the assessor in the prior year, or current year if
79	known, multiplied by current mill rate (current means as of the date of closing)
80	
81 82	CAUTION: Buyer is informed that the actual real estate taxes for the year of closing and subsequent years may be substantially different than the amount used for proration especially in transactions involving new construction, extensive rehabilitation, remodeling
82 83	or area-wide re-assessment. Buyer is encouraged to contact the local assessor regarding possible tax changes.
84	N/A Buyer and Seller agree to re-prorate the real estate taxes, through the day prior to closing based upon the taxes on the actual tax bill for
85	the year of closing, with Buyer and Seller each owing his or her pro-rata share. Buyer shall, within 5 days of receipt, forward a copy of the bill
86	to the forwarding address Seller agrees to provide at closing. The Parties shall re-prorate within 30 days of Buyer's receipt of the actual tax
87 88	bill. Buyer and Seller agree that is a post-closing obligation and is the responsibility of the Parties to complete, not the responsibility of the real estate brokers in this transaction.
89	OCCUPANCY Occupancy of the entire Property shall be given to Buyer at time of closing unless otherwise provided in this Offer at lines 109-115
90	or 277-286 or in an addendum attached per line 479. At time of Buyer's occupancy, Property shall be in broom swept condition and free of all
91	debris and personal property except for personal property belonging to current tenants, or that sold to Buyer or left with Buyer's consent.
92	Occupancy shall be given subject to tenant's rights, if any.
93	LEASED PROPERTY If Property is currently leased and lease(s) extend beyond closing, Seller shall assign Seller's rights under said lease(s)
94 95	and transfer all security deposits and prepaid rents thereunder to Buyer at closing. The terms of the (written) (oral) STRIKE ONE lease(s), if any,
96	are
97	ESTOPPEL LETTERS: Seller shall deliver to Buver no later than days before closing, estopped letters dated within
98	days before closing, from each non-residential tenant, confirming the lease term, rent installment amounts, amount of security
99	deposit, and disclosing any defaults, claims or litigation with regard to the lease or tenancy.
100	RENTAL WEATHERIZATION This transaction (is) (is not) STRIKE ONE exempt from Wisconsin Rental Weatherization Standards (Wis. Admin.
101 102	Code Ch. SPS 367). If not exempt, (Buyer) (Seller) STRIKE ONE ("Buyer" if neither is stricken) shall be responsible for compliance, including all costs, with Wisconsin Rental Weatherization Standards. If Seller is responsible for compliance, Seller shall provide a Certificate of Compliance at
103	closing.
104	TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE "Time is of the Essence" as to: (1) earnest money payment(s); (2) binding acceptance; (3) occupancy; (4) date of
105	closing; (5) contingency Deadlines STRIKE AS APPLICABLE and all other dates and Deadlines in this Offer except: No other
106	. If "Time
107 108	is of the Essence" applies to a date or Deadline, failure to perform by the exact date or Deadline is a breach of contract. If "Time is of the Essence" does not apply to a date or Deadline, then performance within a reasonable time of the date or Deadline is allowed before a breach occurs.
109	ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS/CONTINGENCIES
110	
111	
112	
113	
114	
115	

.

Village LNR

Property Address: 102 E. Union Street, Lone Rock, WI 53556 116 N/A PROPOSED USE CONTINGENCIES: Buyer is purchasing the Property for the purpose of: ______ Page 3 of 9, WB-15

117 118 [insert proposed use and type and size of building, if applicable; e.g. restaurant/tavern with capacity of 350 and 3 second floor dwelling units]. The optional provisions checked on lines 123-139 shall be deemed 119 satisfied unless Buyer delivers to Seller by the deadline(s) set forth on lines 123-139 written notice specifying those items which cannot be 120 satisfied and written evidence substantiating why each specific item included in Buyer's notice cannot be satisfied. Upon delivery of Buyer's notice. 121 122 this Offer shall be null and void. Seller agrees to cooperate with Buyer as necessary to satisfy the contingencies checked at lines 123-139. 123 EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS: This Offer is contingent upon Buyer obtaining, within ____ _ days of acceptance, at (Buyer's) (Seller's) STRIKE ONE ("Buyer's" if neither is stricken) expense, copies of all public and private easements, covenants and 124 125 restrictions affecting the Property and a written determination by a qualified independent third party that none of these prohibit or significantly 126 delay or increase the costs of the proposed use or development identified at lines 116 to 118. 127 APPROVALS: This Offer is contingent upon Buyer obtaining, at (Buyer's) (Seller's) STRIKE ONE ("Buyer's" if neither is stricken) expense, 128 all applicable governmental permits, approvals and licenses, as necessary and appropriate, or the final discretionary action by the granting authority prior to the issuance of such permits, approvals and licenses, for the following items related to Buyer's proposed use: 129 130 or delivering written notice to Seller if the item(s) cannot be obtained or can only be obtained subject to conditions which significantly increase 131 the cost of Buver's proposed use, all within _____ 132 ____ days of acceptance of this Offer. 133 CESS TO PROPERTY: This Offer is contingent upon Buver obtaining. within _ ____ days of acceptance, at (Buyer's) (Seller's) 134 STRIKE ONE ("Buver's" if neither is stricken) expense, written verification that there is legal vehicular access to the Property from public roads. LAND USE APPROVAL: This Offer is contingent upon Buyer obtaining, at (Buyer's) (Seller's) STRIKE ONE ("Buyer's" if neither is stricken) 135 136 expense, a 🗆 rezoning; 🗀 conditional use permit; 🗀 license; 🗀 variance; 🗀 building permit; 🗀 occupancy permit; 🗋 other ___ 137 CHECK ALL THAT APPLY , for the Property for its proposed use described at lines 116-118 or delivering written notice to Seller if the item(s) cannot be obtained or can only be obtained subject to conditions which 138 139 significantly increase the cost of Buyer's proposed use, all within _____ days of acceptance. N/A MAP OF THE PROPERTY: This Offer is contingent upon (Buyer obtaining) (Seller providing) STRIKE ONE ("Seller providing" if neither is 140 survey (ALTA/ACSM Land Title Survey if survey type is not 141 stricken) a specified) dated subsequent to the date of acceptance of this Offer and prepared by a registered land surveyor, within ______ days of 142 acceptance, at (Buyer's) (Seller's) STRIKE ONE ("Seller's" if neither is stricken) expense. The map shall show minimum of _____ 143 acres. _ acres, the legal description of the Property, the Property's boundaries and dimensions, visible encroachments upon 144 maximum of 145 the Property, the location of improvements, if any, and: ____ _. STRIKE AND COMPLETE AS APPLICABLE Additional map features 146 which may be added include, but are not limited to: staking of all corners of the Property; identifying dedicated and apparent streets; lot 147 dimensions; total acreage or square footage; utility installations; easements or rights-of-way. Such survey shall be in satisfactory form and 148 accompanied by any required surveyor's certificate sufficient to enable Buyer to obtain removal of the standard survey exception on the title policy. 149 CAUTION: Consider the cost and the need for map features before selecting them. Also consider the time required to obtain the map 150 151 when setting the deadline. 152 This contingency shall be deemed satisfied unless Buyer, within five (5) days of the earlier of: (1) Buyer's receipt of the map; or (2) the deadline for delivery of said map, delivers to Seller a copy of the map and a written notice which identifies: (1) a significant encroachment; (2) information 153 materially inconsistent with prior representations; (3) failure to meet requirements stated within this contingency; or (4) the existence of conditions 154 that would prohibit the Buyer's intended use of the Property described at lines 116-118. Upon delivery of Buyer's notice, this Offer shall be null and 155 156 void. N/A DOCUMENT REVIEW CONTINGENCY: This Offer is contingent upon Seller delivering the following documents to Buver within 157 days of acceptance: CHECK THOSE THAT APPLY; STRIKE AS APPROPRIATE 158 159 Documents evidencing that the sale of the Property has been properly authorized, if Seller is a business entity. A complete inventory of all furniture, fixtures, equipment and other personal property included in this transaction which is consistent with 160 161 representations made prior to and in this Offer. 162 Uniform Commercial Code lien search as to the personal property included in the purchase price, showing the Property to be free and clear 163 of all liens, other than liens to be released prior to or at closing. 164 Rent roll. 165 Other 166 167 Additional items which may be added include, but are not limited to: building, construction or component warranties, previous environmental site 168 assessments, surveys, title commitments and policies, maintenance agreements, other contracts relating to the Property, existing permits and 169 licenses, recent financial operating statements, current and future rental agreements, notices of termination and non-renewal, and assessment 170 notices. 171 All documents Seller delivers to Buyer shall be true, accurate, current and complete. Buyer shall keep all such documents confidential and disclose them to third parties only to the extent necessary to implement other provisions of this Offer. Buyer shall return all documents (originals 172 and any reproductions) to Seller if this Offer is terminated. 173 CONTINGENCY SATISFACTION: This contingency shall be deemed satisfied unless Buyer, within ____ 174 davs of the earlier of

175 receipt of the final document to be delivered or the deadline for delivery of the documents, delivers to Seller a written notice indicating that this

- 176 contingency has not been satisfied. Such notice shall identify which document(s) have not been timely delivered or do not meet the standard set
- 177 forth for the document(s). Upon delivery of such notice, this Offer shall be null and void.

178 DEFINITIONS

- 179 ACTUAL RECEIPT: "Actual Receipt" means that a Party, not the Party's recipient for delivery, if any, has the document or written notice physically in the Party's possession, regardless of the method of delivery.
- 181 CONDITIONS AFFECTING THE PROPERTY OR TRANSACTION: "Conditions Affecting the Property or Transaction" are defined to include:
- 182 a. Defects in structural components, e.g. roof, foundation, basement or other walls.
- 183 b. Defects in mechanical systems, e.g. HVAC, electrical, plumbing, septic, well, fire safety, security or lighting.
- 184 c. Underground or aboveground storage tanks presently or previously on the Property for storage of flammable or combustible liquids, including 185 but not limited to gasoline and heating oil.
- 186 d. Defect or contamination caused by unsafe concentrations of, or unsafe conditions relating to, lead paint, asbestos, radon, radium in water 187 supplies, mold, pesticides or other potentially hazardous or toxic substances on the premises.
- 188 e. Production of or spillage of methamphetamine (meth) or other hazardous or toxic substances on the Property.
- 189 f. Zoning or building code violations, any land division involving the Property for which required state or local permits had not been obtained, 190 nonconforming structures or uses, conservation easements, rights-of-way.
- 191 g. Special purpose district, such as a drainage district, lake district, sanitary district or sewer district, that has the authority to impose 192 assessments against the real property located within the district.
- 193 h. Proposed, planned or commenced public improvements which may result in special assessments or otherwise materially affect the Property 194 or the present use of the Property.
- 195 i. Federal, state or local regulations requiring repairs, alterations or corrections of an existing condition.
- 196 j. Flooding, standing water, drainage problems or other water problems on or affecting the Property.
- 197 k. Material damage from fire, wind, floods, earthquake, expansive soils, erosion or landslides.
- 198 I. Near airports, freeways, railroads or landfills, or significant odor, noise, water intrusion or other irritants emanating from neighboring property.
- 199 m. Portion of the Property in a floodplain, wetland or shoreland zoning area under local, state or federal regulations.
- 200 n. Property is subject to a mitigation plan required under administrative rules of the Department of Natural Resources related to county 201 shoreland zoning ordinances, which obligates the owner of the Property to establish or maintain certain measures related to shoreland 202 conditions and which is enforceable by the county.
- 203 o. Encroachments; easements, other than recorded utility easements; access restrictions; covenants, conditions and restrictions; shared 204 fences, walls, wells, driveways, signage or other shared usages; or leased parking.
- 205 p. High voltage electric (100 KV or greater) or steel natural gas transmission lines located on but not directly serving the Property.
- 206 q. Structure on the Property designated as a historic building, any part of the Property located in a historic district, or burial sites or 207 archeological artifacts on the Property.
- 208 r. All or part of the land has been assessed as agricultural land, the owner has been assessed a use-value conversion charge or the payment 209 of a use-value conversion charge has been deferred.
- s. All or part of the Property is subject to, enrolled in or in violation of a certified farmland preservation zoning district or a farmland preservation
 agreement, or a Forest Crop, Managed Forest (see disclosure requirements in Wis. Stat. § 710.12), Conservation Reserve or comparable
 program.
- 213 t. A pier is attached to the Property that is not in compliance with state or local pier regulations.
- 214 u. Government investigation or private assessment/audit (of environmental matters) conducted.
- 215 v. Other Defects affecting the Property.
- 216 DEADLINES: "Deadlines" expressed as a number of "days" from an event, such as acceptance, are calculated by excluding the day the event 217 occurred and by counting subsequent calendar days. The deadline expires at midnight on the last day. Deadlines expressed as a specific number 218 of "business days" exclude Saturdays, Sundays, any legal public holiday under Wisconsin or Federal law, and other day designated by the 219 President such that the postal service does not receive registered mail or make regular deliveries on that day. Deadlines expressed as a specific 220 number of "hours" from the occurrence of an event, such as receipt of a notice, are calculated from the exact time of the event, and by counting 24 221 hours per calendar day. Deadlines expressed as a specific day of the calendar year or as the day of a specific event, such as closing, expire at 222 midnight of that day.
- 223 DEFECT: "Defect" means a condition that would have a significant adverse effect on the value of the Property; that would significantly impair 224 the health or safety of future occupants of the Property; or that if not repaired, removed or replaced would significantly shorten or adversely affect 225 the expected normal life of the premises.
- 226 (Definitions Continued on page 6)

Property Address: 102 E. Union Street, Lone Rock, WI 53556

227	IF LINE 228 IS NOT MARKED OR IS MARKED N/A LINES 264-269 APPLY.
228	N/A FINANCING CONTINGENCY: This Offer is contingent upon Buyer being able to obtain a written
229	[INSERT LOAN PROGRAM OR SOURCE] first mortgage loan commitment as described below, within days of acceptance of this
230	Offer. The financing selected shall be in an amount of not less than \$ for a term of not less than years,
231	amortized over not less than years. Initial monthly payments of principal and interest shall not exceed \$ Monthly
232	payments may also include 1/12th of the estimated net annual real estate taxes, hazard insurance premiums, and private mortgage insurance
233	premiums. The mortgage may not include a prepayment premium. Buyer agrees to pay discount points and/or loan origination fee in an amount
234	not to exceed% of the loan. If the purchase price under this Offer is modified, the financed amount, unless otherwise provided, shall
235	be adjusted to the same percentage of the purchase price as in this contingency and the monthly payments shall be adjusted as necessary to
236	maintain the term and amortization stated above.
237	CHECK AND COMPLETE APPLICABLE FINANCING PROVISION AT LINE 238 or 239.
238	☐ FIXED RATE FINANCING: The annual rate of interest shall not exceed%.
239	ADJUSTABLE RATE FINANCING: The initial annual interest rate shall not exceed %. The initial interest rate shall be
240	fixed for months, at which time the interest rate may be increased not more than % per year. The maximum
241	interest rate during the mortgage term shall not exceed %. Monthly payments of principal and interest may be adjusted to
242	reflect interest changes
243	
244	or in an addendum attached per line 479.
245	NOTE: If purchase is conditioned on buyer obtaining financing for operations or development consider adding a contingency for that
246 247	DUTENTS DOTE: BUYER'S LOAN COMMITMENT: Buyer agrees to pay all customary loan and closing costs, to promptly apply for a mortgage loan, and to
247	provide evidence of application promptly upon request of Seller. If Buyer qualifies for the loan described in this Offer or another loan acceptable to
249	Buyer, Buyer agrees to deliver to Seller a copy of the written loan commitment no later than the deadline at line 229. Buyer and Seller agree that
250	delivery of a copy of any written loan commitment to Seller (even if subject to conditions) shall satisfy Buyer's financing contingency if,
251	after review of the loan commitment, Buyer has directed, in writing, delivery of the loan commitment. Buyer's written direction shall
252	
200 254	CAUTION: The delivered commitment may contain conditions Buyer must yet satisfy to obligate the lender to provide the loan. BUYER, BUYER'S LENDER AND AGENTS OF BUYER OR SELLER SHALL NOT DELIVER A LOAN COMMITMENT TO SELLER OR SELLER'S
	AGENT WITHOUT BUYER'S PRIOR WRITTEN APPROVAL OR UNLESS ACCOMPANIED BY A NOTICE OF UNACCEPTABILITY.
	• SELLER TERMINATION RIGHTS: If Buyer does not make timely delivery of said commitment; Seller may terminate this Offer if Seller delivers
257	a written notice of termination to Buyer prior to Seller's Actual Receipt of a copy of Buyer's written loan commitment.
258	FINANCING UNAVAILABILITY: If financing is not available on the terms stated in this Offer (and Buyer has not already delivered an
259 260	acceptable loan commitment for other financing to Seller), Buyer shall promptly deliver written notice to Seller of same including copies of lender(s)' rejection letter(s) or other evidence of unavailability. Unless a specific loan source is named in this Offer, Seller shall then have 10 days
261	to deliver to Buyer written notice of Seller's decision to finance this transaction on the same terms set forth in this Offer, and this Offer shall remain
262	in full force and effect, with the time for closing extended accordingly. If Seller's notice is not timely given, this Offer shall be null and void. Buyer
263	authorizes Seller to obtain any credit information reasonably appropriate to determine Buyer's credit worthiness for Seller financing.
264	IF THIS OFFER IS NOT CONTINGENT ON FINANCING: Within 7 days of acceptance, a financial institution or third party in control of Buyer's
265	funds shall provide Seller with reasonable written verification that Buyer has, at the time of verification, sufficient funds to close. If such written verification is not provided, Seller has the right to terminate this Offer by delivering written notice to Buyer. Buyer may or may not obtain mortgage
267	financing but does not need the protection of a financing contingency. Seller agrees to allow Buyer's appraiser access to the Property for
	purposes of an appraisal. Buyer understands and agrees that this Offer is not subject to the appraisal meeting any particular value, unless this
	Offer is subject to an appraisal contingency, nor does the right of access for an appraisal constitute a financing contingency.
	N/A APPRAISAL CONTINGENCY: This Offer is contingent upon the Buyer or Buyer's lender having the Property appraised at Buyer's expense
	by a Wisconsin licensed or certified independent appraiser who issues an appraisal report dated subsequent to the date of this Offer indicating an
272	appraised value for the Property equal to or greater than the agreed upon purchase price. This contingency shall be deemed satisfied unless
273	Buyer, within days of acceptance, delivers to Seller a copy of the appraisal report which indicates that the appraised value is not
	equal to or greater than the agreed upon purchase price, accompanied by a written notice of termination.
	CAUTION: An appraisal ordered by Buyer's lender may not be received until shortly before closing. Consider whether deadlines provide
	adequate time for performance.
	ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS/CONTINGENCIES
	·
279	
280	
281	
282	
283	
284	
285	
286	

287 DEFINITIONS CONTINUED FROM PAGE 4

ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ASSESSMENT: An "Environmental Site Assessment" (also known as a "Phase I Site Assessment") (see lines 379-395) 288 may include, but is not limited to: (1) an inspection of the Property; (2) a review of the ownership and use history of the Property, including a 289 search of title records showing private ownership of the Property for a period of 80 years prior to the visual inspection; (3) a review of historic and 290 recent aerial photographs of the Property, if available; (4) a review of environmental licenses, permits or orders issued with respect to the Property 291 (5) an evaluation of results of any environmental sampling and analysis that has been conducted on the Property; and (6) a review to determine if 292 the Property is listed in any of the written compilations of sites or facilities considered to pose a threat to human health or the environment 293 including the National Priorities List, the Department of Nature Resources' (DNR) Registry of Waste Disposal Sites, the DNR's Contaminated 294 295 Lands Environmental Action Network, and the DNR's Remediation and Redevelopment (RR) Sites Map including the Geographical Information 296 System (GIS) Registry and related resources. Any Environmental Site Assessment performed under this Offer shall comply with generally 297 recognized industry standards (e.g. current American Society of Testing and Materials "Standard Practice for Environmental Site Assesments"),

298 and state and federal guidelines, as applicable.

299 CAUTION: Unless otherwise agreed an Environmental Site Assessment does not include subsurface testing of the soil or groundwater 300 or other testing of the Property for environmental pollution. If further investigation is required, insert provisions for a Phase II Site 301 Assessment (collection and analysis of samples), Phase III Environmental Site Assessment (evaluation of remediation alternatives) or 302 other site evaluation at lines 109-115 or 277-286 or attach as an addendum per line 479.

303 • FIXTURE: A "Fixture" is an item of property which is physically attached to or so closely associated with land or improvements so as to be treated as part of the real estate, including, without limitation, physically attached items not easily removable without damage to the premises, 304 305 items specifically adapted to the premises and items customarily treated as fixtures, including, but not limited to, all: garden bulbs; plants; shrubs 306 and trees; screen and storm doors and windows; electric lighting fixtures; window shades; curtain and traverse rods; blinds and shutters; central heating and cooling units and attached equipment; water heaters and treatment systems; sump pumps; attached or fitted floor coverings; awnings; 307 attached antennas; garage door openers and remote controls; installed security systems; central vacuum systems and accessories; in-ground 308 sprinkler systems and component parts; built-in appliances; ceiling fans; fences; storage buildings on permanent foundations and docks/piers on 309 310 permanent foundations. A Fixture does not include trade fixtures owned by tenants of the Property.

311 CAUTION: Exclude Fixtures not owned by Seller such as rented fixtures. See lines 20-22.

312 PROPERTY: Unless otherwise stated, "Property" means the real estate described at lines 4-7.

313 **DISTRIBUTION OF INFORMATION** Buyer and Seller authorize the agents of Buyer and Seller to: (i) distribute copies of the Offer to Buyer's 314 lender, appraisers, title insurance companies and any other settlement service providers for the transaction as defined by the Real Estate 315 Settlement Procedures Act (RESPA); (ii) report sales and financing concession data to multiple listing service sold databases; and (iii) provide 316 active listing, pending sale, closed sale and financing concession information and data, and related information regarding seller contributions, 317 incentives or assistance, and third party gifts, to appraisers researching comparable sales, market conditions and listings, upon inquiry.

318 EARNEST MONEY

319 • <u>HELD BY</u>: Unless otherwise agreed, earnest money shall be paid to and held in the trust account of the listing broker (Buyer's agent if Property 320 is not listed or Seller's account if no broker is involved), until applied to purchase price or otherwise disbursed as provided in the Offer.

321 CAUTION: Should persons other than a broker hold earnest money, an escrow agreement should be drafted by the Parties or an 322 attorney, if someone other than Buyer makes payment of earnest money, consider a special disbursement agreement.

• DISBURSEMENT: If negotiations do not result in an accepted offer, the earnest money shall be promptly disbursed (after clearance from 323 324 payor's depository institution if earnest money is paid by check) to the person(s) who paid the earnest money. At closing, earnest money shall be 325 disbursed according to the closing statement. If this Offer does not close, the earnest money shall be disbursed according to a written disbursement agreement signed by all Parties to this Offer. If said disbursement agreement has not been delivered to broker within 60 days after 326 327 the date set for closing, broker may disburse the earnest money: (1) as directed by an attorney who has reviewed the transaction and does not 328 represent Buyer or Seller; (2) into a court hearing a lawsuit involving the earnest money and all Parties to this Offer; (3) as directed by court order; 329 or (4) any other disbursement required or allowed by law. Broker may retain legal services to direct disbursement per (1) or to file an interpleader 330 action per (2) and broker may deduct from the earnest money any costs and reasonable attorneys fees, not to exceed \$250, prior to 331 disbursement.

• LEGAL RIGHTS/ACTION: Broker's disbursement of earnest money does not determine the legal rights of the Parties in relation to this Offer. 332 Buyer's or Seller's legal right to earnest money cannot be determined by broker. At least 30 days prior to disbursement per (1) or (4) above, broker 333 334 shall send Buyer and Seller notice of the disbursement by certified mail. If Buyer or Seller disagree with broker's proposed disbursement, a lawsuit 335 may be filed to obtain a court order regarding disbursement. Small Claims Court has jurisdiction over all earnest money disputes arising out of the 336 sale of residential property with 1-4 dwelling units and certain other earnest money disputes. Buyer and Seller should consider consulting 337 attorneys regarding their legal rights under this Offer in case of a dispute. Both Parties agree to hold the broker harmless from any liability for good faith disbursement of earnest money in accordance with this Offer or applicable Department of Safety and Professional Services regulations 338 concerning earnest money. See Wis. Admin. Code Ch. REEB 18. 339

340	TITLE EVIDENCE
341	<u>CONVEYANCE OF TITLE</u> : Upon payment of the purchase price, Seller shall convey the Property by warranty deed (trustee's deed if
342	Seller is a trust, personal representative's deed if Seller is an estate or other conveyance as provided herein) free and clear of all liens and
343	encumbrances, except: municipal and zoning ordinances and agreements entered under them, recorded easements for the distribution of utility
344	and municipal services, recorded building and use restrictions and covenants, present uses of the Property in violation of the foregoing disclosed
345	in Seller's disclosure report, and Real Estate Condition Report, if applicable, and in this Offer, general taxes levied in the year of closing and
346	
347	
348	
349	necessary to record the conveyance at Seller's cost and pay the Wisconsin Real Estate Transfer Fee.
350	WARNING: Municipal and zoning ordinances, recorded building and use restrictions, covenants and easements may prohibit certain
351	improvements or uses and therefore should be reviewed, particularly if Buyer contemplates making improvements to Property or a use
352	other than the current use.
353	• TITLE EVIDENCE: Seller shall give evidence of title in the form of an owner's policy of title insurance in the amount of the purchase price on a
354	current ALTA form issued by an insurer licensed to write title insurance in Wisconsin. Seller shall pay all costs of providing title evidence to Buyer.
355	Buyer shall pay all costs of providing title evidence required by Buyer's lender.
356	GAP ENDORSEMENT: Seller shall provide a "gap" endorsement or equivalent gap coverage at (Seller's) (Buyer's) STRIKE ONE ("Seller's" if a subscription of the structure of t
357	neither stricken) cost to provide coverage for any liens or encumbrances first filed or recorded after the effective date of the title insurance
358	commitment and before the deed is recorded, subject to the title insurance policy exclusions and exceptions, provided the title company will issue
35 9	the endorsement. If a gap endorsement or equivalent gap coverage is not available, Buyer may give written notice that title is not acceptable for
360	closing (see lines 365-371).
361	PROVISION OF MERCHANTABLE TITLE: For purposes of closing, title evidence shall be acceptable if the required title insurance
362	commitment is delivered to Buyer's attorney or Buyer not more than days after acceptance ("15" if left blank), showing title to the
363	Property as of a date no more than 15 days before delivery of such title evidence to be merchantable per lines 341-348, subject only to liens which
364	will be paid out of the proceeds of closing and standard title insurance requirements and exceptions, as appropriate.
365	• TITLE NOT ACCEPTABLE FOR CLOSING: If title is not acceptable for closing, Buyer shall notify Seller in writing of objections to title within
366	days ("15" if left blank) after delivery of the title commitment to Buyer or Buyer's attorney. In such event, Seller shall have a
367	reasonable time, but not exceeding days (reasonable time, but not exceeding)
	notice to Buyer stating Seller's election to remove the objections by the time set for closing. In the event that Seller is unable to remove said
368	
369	objections, Buyer may deliver to Seller written notice waiving the objections, and the time for closing shall be extended accordingly. If Buyer does
370	not waive the objections, Buyer shall deliver written notice of termination and this Offer shall be null and void. Providing title evidence acceptable
371	for closing does not extinguish Seller's obligations to give merchantable title to Buyer.
372	• SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS/OTHER EXPENSES: Special assessments, if any, levied or for work actually commenced prior to the date of this
373	Offer shall be paid by Seller no later than closing. All other special assessments shall be paid by Buyer.
374	CAUTION: Consider a special agreement if area assessments, property owners association assessments, special charges for current
375	services under Wis. Stat. § 66.0627 or other expenses are contemplated. "Other expenses" are one-time charges or ongoing use fees
376	for public improvements (other than those resulting in special assessments) relating to curb, gutter, street, sidewalk, municipal water,
377	sanitary and storm water and storm sewer (including all sewer mains and hook-up/connection and interceptor charges), parks, street
378	lighting and street trees, and impact fees for other public facilities, as defined in Wis. Stat. § 66.0617(1)(f).
	N/A ENVIRONMENTAL EVALUATION CONTINGENCY: This Offer is contingent upon a qualified independent environmental consultant of
	Buyer's choice conducting an Environmental Site Assessment of the Property (see lines 288-302), at (Buyer's) (Seller's) expense STRIKE ONE
	("Buyer's" if neither is stricken), which discloses no Defects. For the purpose of this contingency, a Defect (see lines 223-225) is defined to also
	include a material violation of environmental laws, a material contingent liability affecting the Property arising under any environmental laws, the
383	presence of an underground storage tank(s) or material levels of hazardous substances either on the Property or presenting a significant risk of
384	contaminating the Property due to future migration from other properties. Defects do not include conditions the nature and extent of which Buyer
	had actual knowledge or written notice before signing the Offer.
	CONTINGENCY SATISFACTION: This contingency shall be deemed satisfied unless Buyer, within days of acceptance,
	delivers to Seller a copy of the Environmental Site Assessment report and a written notice listing the Defect(s) identified in the Environmental Site
388	Assessment report to which Buyer objects (Notice of Defects).
389	CAUTION: A proposed amendment is not a Notice of Defects and will not satisfy this notice requirement.
	RIGHT TO CURE: Seller (shall) (shall not) STRIKE ONE ("shall" if neither is stricken) have a right to cure the Defects. If Seller has the right to
	cure, Seller may satisfy this contingency by: (1) delivering written notice to Buyer within 10 days of Buyer's delivery of the Notice of Defects stating
	Seller's election to cure Defects, (2) curing the Defects in a good and workmanlike manner and (3) delivering to Buyer a written report detailing the
	work done within 3 days prior to closing. This Offer shall be null and void if Buyer makes timely delivery of the Notice of Defects and written
	Environmental Site Assessment report and: (1) Seller does not have a right to cure or (2) Seller has a right to cure but; (a) Seller delivers written
090	notice that Seller will not cure or (b) Seller does not timely deliver the written notice of election to cure.

396 DEFAULT Seller and Buyer each have the legal duty to use good faith and due diligence in completing the terms and conditions of this Offer. A

397 material failure to perform any obligation under this Offer is a default which may subject the defaulting party to liability for damages or other legal 398 remedies.

399 If Buyer defaults, Seller may:

400 (1) sue for specific performance and request the earnest money as partial payment of the purchase price; or

401 (2) terminate the Offer and have the option to: (a) request the earnest money as liquidated damages; or (b) sue for actual damages.

402 If <u>Seller defaults</u>, Buyer may:

403 (1) sue for specific performance; or

404 (2) terminate the Offer and request the return of the earnest money, sue for actual damages, or both.

405 In addition, the Parties may seek any other remedies available in law or equity.

The Parties understand that the availability of any judicial remedy will depend upon the circumstances of the situation and the discretion of the courts. If either Party defaults, the Parties may renegotiate the Offer or seek nonjudicial dispute resolution instead of the remedies outlined above. By agreeing to binding arbitration, the Parties may lose the right to litigate in a court of law those disputes covered by the arbitration agreement.

409 NOTE: IF ACCEPTED, THIS OFFER CAN CREATE A LEGALLY ENFORCEABLE CONTRACT. BOTH PARTIES SHOULD READ THIS 410 DOCUMENT CAREFULLY. BROKERS MAY PROVIDE A GENERAL EXPLANATION OF THE PROVISIONS OF THE OFFER BUT ARE 411 PROHIBITED BY LAW FROM GIVING ADVICE OR OPINIONS CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS UNDER THIS OFFER OR HOW TITLE 412 SHOULD BE TAKEN AT CLOSING, AN ATTORNEY SHOULD BE CONSULTED IF LEGAL ADVICE IS NEEDED.

413 **ENTIRE CONTRACT** This Offer, including any amendments to it, contains the entire agreement of the Buyer and Seller regarding the 414 transaction. All prior negotiations and discussions have been merged into this Offer. This agreement binds and inures to the benefit of the Parties 415 to this Offer and their successors in interest.

416 PROPERTY DIMENSIONS AND SURVEYS Buyer acknowledges that any land, building or room dimensions, or total acreage or building square 417 footage figures, provided to Buyer by Seller or by a broker, may be approximate because of rounding, formulas used or other reasons, unless

418 verified by survey or other means.

419 CAUTION: Buyer should verify total square footage or acreage figures and land, building or room dimensions, if material to Buyer's 420 decision to purchase.

421 **BUYER'S PRE-CLOSING WALK-THROUGH** Within 3 days prior to closing, at a reasonable time pre-approved by Seller or Seller's agent, Buyer 422 shall have the right to walk through the Property to determine that there has been no significant change in the condition of the Property, except for 423 ordinary wear and tear and changes approved by Buyer, and that any Defects Seller has agreed to cure have been repaired in the manner agreed 424 to by the Parties.

425 PROPERTY DAMAGE BETWEEN ACCEPTANCE AND CLOSING Seller shall maintain the Property until the earlier of closing or occupancy of Buyer in materially the same condition as of the date of acceptance of this Offer, except for ordinary wear and tear. If, prior to closing, the Property 426 is damaged in an amount of not more than five percent (5%) of the selling price, Seller shall be obligated to repair the Property and restore it to 427 428 the same condition that it was on the day of this Offer. No later than closing, Seller shall provide Buyer with lien waivers for all lienable repairs and restoration, If the damage shall exceed such sum, Seller shall promptly notify Buyer in writing of the damage and this Offer may be canceled at 429 430 option of Buyer. Should Buyer elect to carry out this Offer despite such damage, Buyer shall be entitled to the insurance proceeds, if any, relating 431 to the damage to the Property, plus a credit towards the purchase price equal to the amount of Seller's deductible on such policy, if any. However, 432 if this sale is financed by a land contract or a mortgage to Seller, any insurance proceeds shall be held in trust for the sold purpose of restoring the 433 Property.

434 **NOTICE ABOUT SEX OFFENDER REGISTRY** You may obtain information about the sex offender registry and persons registered with the 435 registry by contacting the Wisconsin Department of Corrections on the Internet at <u>http://www.widocoffenders.org</u> or by telephone at 436 (608) 240-5830.

INSPECTIONS AND TESTING Buyer may only conduct inspections or tests if specific contingencies are included as a part of this Offer. An "inspection" is defined as an observation of the Property which does not include an appraisal or testing of the Property, other than testing for leaking carbon monoxide, or testing for leaking LP gas or natural gas used as a fuel source, which are hereby authorized. A "test" is defined as the taking of samples of materials such as soils, water, air or building materials from the Property and the laboratory or other analysis of these materials. Seller agrees to allow Buyer's inspectors, testers, appraisers and qualified third parties reasonable access to the Property upon advance notice, if necessary to satisfy the contingencies in this Offer. Buyer and licensees may be present at all inspections and testing. Except as otherwise provided, Seller's authorization for inspections does not authorize Buyer to conduct testing of the Property.

444 NOTE: Any contingency authorizing testing should specify the areas of the Property to be tested, the purpose of the test, (e.g., to 445 determine if environmental contamination is present), any limitations on Buyer's testing and any other material terms of the 446 contingency.

447 Buyer agrees to promptly restore the Property to its original condition after Buyer's inspections and testing are completed unless otherwise agreed 448 to with Seller. Buyer agrees to promptly provide copies of all inspection and testing reports to Seller. Seller acknowledges that certain inspections 449 or tests may detect environmental pollution which may be required to be reported to the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources.

Property A	Address:	102	Ε.	Union	Street,	Lone	Rock,	WI	53556

450	
451	
452 453	a qualified independent inspector or qualified independent third party performing an inspection of
453	
455	recommended in a written report resulting from an authorized inspection performed provided they occur prior to the deadline specified at line 461.
456	
457	
458	
459	···· ··· ··· ···· ····················
460	
461	
462	
463 464	
465	
466	
467	
468	
469	inspection report(s) and: (1) Seller does not have a right to cure or (2) Seller has a right to cure but: (a) Seller delivers written notice that Seller will
470	not cure or (b) Seller does not timely deliver the written notice of election to cure.
471	
472	, no later than If Seller accepts a bona fide secondary offer, Seller may give written notice to Buyer of acceptance. If Buyer does not deliver to Seller a written waiver of the Closing of Buyer's Property
473	Seller may give written notice to Buyer of acceptance. If Buyer does not deliver to Seller a written waiver of the Closing of Buyer's Property
474	
475	
	[INSERT OTHER REQUIREMENTS, IF ANY (e.g., PAYMENT OF ADDITIONAL EARNEST MONEY, WAIVER OF ALL CONTINGENCIES, OR PROVIDING EVIDENCE OF SALE OR BRIDGE LOAN, etc.)] within hours of Buyer's Actual Receipt of said notice, this Offer shall be
477 478	
479	x Addendum No. 1, RECR and Add. S is/are made part of this Offer.
480	This Offer was drafted by [Licensee and Firm] Ted Greenheck, Driftless Area Group
481	on12/14/2020
482	Buyer Entity Name (if any): Village of Lone Rock
483	(X)
484	Buyer's/Authorized Signature 🛦 Print Name/Title Here 🕨 Dan Quinn, Mayor - Village of Lone Rock Date
485	(X) Buyer's/Authorized Signature ▲ Print Name/Title Here ► Date ▲
400	Buyer's/Authorized Signature 🛔 Print Name/Title Here 🕨 Date
487	EARNEST MONEY RECEIPT Broker acknowledges receipt of earnest money as per line 10 of the above Offer.
100	Broker (By)
488 480	SELLER ACCEPTS THIS OFFER. THE WARRANTIES, REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS MADE IN THIS OFFER SURVIVE CLOSING
	AND THE CONVEYANCE OF THE PROPERTY. SELLER AGREES TO CONVEY THE PROPERTY ON THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS AS
	SET FORTH HEREIN AND ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIPT OF A COPY OF THIS OFFER.
49Z	Seller Entity Name (if any): Ewers Contracting Inc.
402	12-22-20202
495	(X)
-0-	
495	(X) $\frac{10^2 - 20^2 - 2020}{\text{Seller's/Authorized Signature } Print Name/Title Here Corey Ewers Date }$ (X) $\frac{10^2 - 20^2 - 2020}{\text{Date } 2020}$
496	Seller's/Authorized Signature Print Name/Title Here Kevin Ewers and Chris Ewers Date
497	This Offer was presented to Seller by [Licensee and Firm] Ted Greenheck, Driftless Area LLC
498	on at at a.m./p.m.
499	This Offer is rejected
499 500	This Offer is rejected This Offer is countered [See attached counter] Date Date Date

Addendum No. 1

- 1) This property is being sold as: "AS IS, AS Stands, Where Is". Seller makes no representation or warranties regarding the condition of the property.
- 2) This Offer is contingent upon the Village of Lone Rock obtaining a CDBG Close Program Grant by August 1, 2021. If the Village is unsuccessful in obtaining said Grant, this offer shall be null and void.
- 3) Upon Successful Grant approval, the Buyer shall agree to pay the following closing costs:
 - a) Title Insurance Policy
 - b) Gap Insurance Policy
 - c) Title Companies Closing Cost
 - d) Deed Prep by attorney
 - e) WI RE Transfer Return Document
 - d) All Recording fees for Deed and Tax Documents.

Seller will be responsible for their proration of RE Property Tax in 2021 up to closing date, and the Wisconsin RE Transfer Tax, along with mortgages releases payoff and overnight fees.

4) The Seller's is responsible to ensure the property is and clear of any liens or judgements placed upon property and Sellers Cost if any.

· ~4.

WISCONSIN REALTORS® ASSOCIATION 4801 Forest Run Road Madison, Wisconsin 53704

SELLER DISCLOSURE REPORT - COMMERCIAL

THIS DISCLOSURE REPORT CONCERNS THE REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 102 E. Union St

		······	IN THE
Village	(GITY) (VILLAGE) (TOWN) OF	Lone Rock	COUNTY OF
Richland	STATE OF WISCONSIN. THIS	REPORT IS A DISCLOSURE OF THE	CONDITION OF THAT
PROPERTY AS OF	(A (MONTH)	(DAY) 2020 (YEAR).	

When listing a property Wis. Admin. Code § REEB 24.07(1)(b) requires licensees to inspect the property and to "make inquiries of the seller on the condition of the structure, mechanical systems and other relevant aspects of the property. The licensee shall request that the seller provide a written response to the licensee's inquiry." This Seller Disclosure Report is a tool designed to help the licensee fulfill this license law duty.

This is not a warranty of any kind by the owner or any agents representing any party in this transaction and is not a substitute for any inspections, testing or warranties that the parties may wish to obtain. This is not a disclosure report required by Wis. Stat. Ch. 709 and the owner is voluntarily providing this information.

NOTICE TO PARTIES REGARDING ADVICE OR INSPECTIONS

Real estate licensees may not provide advice or opinions concerning whether or not an item is a defect for the purposes of this report or concerning the legal rights or obligations of parties to a transaction. The parties may wish to obtain professional advice or inspections of the property and to include appropriate provisions in a contract between them with respect to any advice, inspections, defects, or warranties.

A. OWNER'S INFORMATION

A1. In this form, "aware" means the "owner(s)" have notice or knowledge.

A2. In this form, "defect" means a condition that would have a significant adverse effect on the value of the property; that would significantly impair the health or safety of future occupants of the property; or that if not repaired, removed, or replaced would significantly shorten or adversely affect the expected normal life of the premises.

A3. In this form, "owner" means the person or persons, entity, or organization that owns the above-described real property.

A4. The owner represents that to the best of the owner's knowledge, the responses to the following questions have been accurately checked as "yes," "no," or "not applicable (N/A)" to the property being sold. If the owner responds to any question with "yes," the owner shall provide an explanation of the reason why the response to the question is "yes" in the area provided following each group of questions.

A5. The owner discloses the following information with the knowledge that, even though this is not a warranty, prospective buyers may rely on this information in deciding whether and on what terms to purchase the property. The owner hereby authorizes the owner's agents and the agents of any prospective buyer to provide a copy of this report, and to disclose any information in the report, to any person in connection with any actual or anticipated sale of the property.

B. STRUCTURAL AND MECHANICAL

		YES	NO	N/A
B1.	Are you aware of defects in the roof?	×		
B2.	Are you aware of defects in the electrical system?		X	
B3.	Are you aware of defects in part of the plumbing system?		X	
B4.	Are you aware of defects in the heating and air conditioning system (including the air filters and humidiflers), fire safety, security or lighting?		\boxtimes	
B5.	Are you aware of defects in the basement or foundation (including cracks, seepage, and bulges)?		X	
B6.	Are you aware of defects in any structure or structural components on the property (including walls)?		Ø	
B7.	Are you aware of defects in mechanical equipment included in the sale either as fixtures or		X	
	personal property?		N	6 -1
B8.	Are you aware of rented items located on the property or items affixed to or closely associated with the property?	. Ļ l	A	
B9.	Explanation of "yes" responses Rost is new end of life span			

			Pa	ge 2 of 4
	C. ENVIRONMENTAL	YES	NO	N/A
C1. C2.	Are you aware of a defect caused by unsafe concentrations of, or unsafe conditions relating to, radon, radium in water supplies, high voltage electric (100 KV or greater) or steel natural gas transmission lines located on but not directly serving the property, lead in paint, lead in soil,		N 区 S	
C3. C4.	Are you aware of the presence of or a defect caused by unsafe concentrations of, unsafe		図	
C5.	conditions relating to, or the storage of hazardous or toxic substances on neighboring properties? Are you aware of current or previous termite, powder post beetle, or carpenter ant infestations or		X	
C6.	defects caused by animal, reptile, or insect infestations? Are you aware of water quality issues caused by unsafe concentrations of or unsafe conditions relating to lead?		Ø	
C7.	and the second		Ø	
C8. C9.			Ø	
	D. STORAGE TANKS			1944 - 1959 - 1959 - 1944
D1.	Are you aware of underground or aboveground fuel storage tanks on or previously located on the property for storage of flammable or combustible liquids, including but not limited to gasoline and	YES Ø		N/A □
D2.	heating oil? Are you aware of defects in the underground or aboveground fuel storage tanks on or previously located on the property?		\boxtimes	
D3.	Explanation of "yes" responses <u>Tanks</u> have been remained from property			
	E. TAXES, SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS, PERMITS, ETC.	YES	NO	N/A
E1.	Have you received notice of property tax increases, other than normal annual increases, or are you aware of a pending property reassessment?		N N	
E2. E3.	Are you aware that remodeling was done that may increase the property's assessed value? Are you aware of pending special assessments?		XX	Н
E4.	Are you aware that the property is located within a special purpose district, such as a drainage district, that has the authority to impose assessments against the real property located within the district?		X	
E5.	Are you aware of any proposed construction of a public project that may affect the use of the property?		Ø	
E6.	Are you aware of any remodeling, replacements, or repairs affecting the property's structure or mechanical systems that were done or additions to this property that were made during your period of ownership without the required permits?		\boxtimes	
E7.	Are you aware of any land division involving the property for which a required state or local permit was not obtained?		\boxtimes	
E8.	Explanation of "yes" responses			
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,				
	F. LAND USE	VED	NO	λ1/Λ
F1. F2.	Are you aware of any zoning code violations with respect to the property? Are you aware of the property or any portion of the property being located in a floodplain, wetland, or shoreland zoning area, or of flooding, drainage problems, standing water or other water	YES	NO NXX	
F3. F4. F5. F6.	problems affecting the property? Are you aware of nonconforming uses of the property or nonconforming structures on the property? Are you aware of conservation easements on the property? Are you aware of restrictive covenants or deed restrictions on the property? Are you aware of nonowners having rights to use part of the property, including, but not limited to,		ZXIXIX	

- Are you aware of restrictive covenants or deed restrictions on the property? Are you aware of nonowners having rights to use part of the property, including, but not limited to, rights-of-way and easements other than recorded utility easements? F5. F6.

Village LNR

			Pa	ge 3 of 4
F7.	Are you aware of the property being subject to a mitigation plan required under administrative rules of the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources related to county shoreland zoning	YES	NO KI	N/A
F8.	ordinances? Use Value.			
ΓŪ,	a. Are you aware of all or part of the property having been assessed as agricultural land under Wis. Stat. s. 70.32 (2r) (use value assessment)?		Ø	
	b. Are you aware of the property having been assessed a use-value assessment conversion charge relating to this property? (Wis. Stat. s. 74.485 (2))		Ø	
	c. Are you aware of the payment of a use-value assessment conversion charge having been deferred relating to this property? (Wis. Stat. s. 74.485 (4))			
F9. F10.	Is all or part of the property subject to or in violation of a farmland preservation agreement? Is all or part of the property subject to, enrolled in, or in violation of the Forest Crop Law, Managed Forest Law, the Conservation Reserve Program, or a comparable program?		N X	8
F11.	Are you aware of a dam that is totally or partially located on the property or that an ownership in a dam that is not located on the property will be transferred with the property because it is owned collectively by members of a homeowners' association, lake district, or similar group? (If "yes," contact the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources to find out if dam transfer requirements or agency orders apply.)		Ø	
F12.	Are you aware of boundary or lot line disputes, encroachments, or encumbrances affecting the property?		\boxtimes	
F13. F14.	Are you aware there is not legal access to the property? Are you aware of federal, state, or local regulations requiring repairs, alterations, or corrections of an existing condition? This may include items such as orders to correct building code violations.		NN	
F15.	Are you aware of a pier attached to the property that is not in compliance with state or local pier regulations? See <u>http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/waterways</u> for more information.			
F16.	Are you aware of one or more burial sites or archeological artifacts on the property? (For information regarding the presence, preservation, and potential disturbance of burial sites, contact the Wisconsin Historical Society at 800-342-7834 or www.wihist.org/burial-information).		Ø	
F17.	Explanation of "yes" responses			
98444-484978-4849 1986-69978-98-98-98-98				**************************************
	G. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	YES	NO	N/A
G1.	Are you aware of a structure on the property that is designated as a historic building or that all or any part of the property is in a historic district?		Ø	
G2.	Are you aware of any agreements that bind subsequent owners of the property, such as a lease		X	. П

- G2. Are you aware of any agreements that bind subsequent owners of the property, such as a lease agreement or an extension of credit from an electric cooperative?
- G3. Are you aware of defects in a well on the property or in a well that serves the property, including unsafe well water?
- G4. Are you aware of a joint well serving the property including any defect related to a joint well serving the property?
- G5. Are you aware that a septic system or other private sanitary disposal system serves the property including defects in the septic system or other private sanitary disposal system on the property or any out-of-service septic system that serves the property and that is not closed or abandoned according to applicable regulations?
- G6. Are you aware of an "LP" tank on the property, including defects? (If "yes," specify in the additional information space whether the owner of the property either owns or leases the tank.)
- Are you aware of material damage from fire, wind, floods, earthquake, expansive soils, erosion or G7. landslides?
- G8. Are you aware of nearby airports, freeways, railroads or landfills, or significant odor, noise, water intrusion or other irritants emanating from neighboring property?
- G9. Are you aware of any shared usages such as shared fences, walls, driveways, or signage, or any defect relating to the shared use?
- Are you aware of leased parking? G10.
- Are you aware of other defects affecting the property? G11.
- The owner has owned the property for 4- years. G12.

G13. Explanation of "yes" responses

Note: Any sales contract provision requiring inspection of a residential dumbwaiter or elevator must be performed by a state-licensed elevator inspector.

 \mathbf{Z}

M

Ø.

Ø

M

X

 \boxtimes

図

 \square

 \Box

Π

Π

P

OWNER'S CERTIFICATION

The owner certifies that the information in this report is true and correct to the best of the owner's knowledge as of the date on which the owner signs this report.

Entity Name (If any): <u>Ewors</u> Contracting Inc. Name & Title of Authorized Representative Signing for Entity: <u>Completivers</u> <u>Counce</u>	
Name & Title of Authorized Representative Signing for Entity: Comp Elvers Owner	
Authorized Signature for Entity: Correy Eurer	Date 12-1-2020
Owner	Date
VIII0	

CERTIFICATION BY PERSON SUPPLYING INFORMATION

A person other than the owner certifies that the person supplied information on which the owner relied for this report and that the information is true and correct to the best of the person's knowledge as of the date on which the person signs this report.

Person	 ltems	 Date	
Person	Items	Date	

BUYER'S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The prospective buyer acknowledges that technical knowledge such as that acquired by professional inspectors may be required to detect certain defects such as the presence of asbestos, building code violations, and floodplain status.

I acknowledge receipt of a copy of this statement.

Entity Name (if any):		
Name & Title of Authorized Representative Signing for Entity:		ر. بردوناسم
Authorized Signature for Entity:	Date	
Prospective buyer	Date	
	Date	
Prospective buyer		

Copyright © 2018 by Wisconsin REALTORS® Association; Drafted by: Corl Moore Lamont No representation is made as to the legal validity of any provision or the adequacy of any provision in any specific transaction. This report form does not satisfy Wis. Stat. chapter 709 which generally applies to transfers of real estate containing 1-4 dwelling units or vacant land.

Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48028 www.zipLogix.com

WISCONSIN REALTORS® ASSOCIATION 4801 Forest Run Road Madison, Wisconsin 53704

11

20

Page 1 of 3

■ LEAD WARNING STATEMENT: Every purchaser of any interest in residential real property on which a 1 residential dwelling was built prior to 1978 is notified that such property may present exposure to lead from 2 lead-based paint that may place young children at risk of developing lead poisoning. Lead poisoning in 3 young children may produce permanent neurological damage, including learning disabilities, reduced 4 intelligence quotient, behavioral problems, and impaired memory. Lead poisoning also poses a particular 5 risk to pregnant women. The seller of any interest in residential real property is required to provide the 6 buyer with any information on lead-based paint hazards from risk assessments or inspections in the 7 seller's possession and notify the buyer of any known lead-based paint hazards. A risk assessment or 8 inspection for possible lead-based paint hazards is recommended prior to purchase. 9

10 Disclosures and Acknowledgments made with respect to the Property at 102 E. Union Street, Lone Rock

, Wisconsin.

SELLER DISCLOSURE AND CERTIFICATION.
 (1) SELLER DISCLOSURES: (a) Seller hereby represents that Seller has no knowledge of any lead-based paint or lead-based paint hazards (collectively referred to as LBP) present in or on the Property except:

16 (Explain the information known to Seller, including any additional information available about the basis for the determination 17 that LBP exists in or on the Property, the location of any LBP, and the condition of painted surfaces, or indicate "none.")

(b) Seller hereby confirms that Seller has provided the Buyer with the following records and reports which comprise all of the reports and records available to Seller pertaining to lead-based paint or lead-based paint hazards (LBP) in or on the Property:

(Identify the LBP record(s) and report(s) (e.g. LBP abatements, inspections, reductions, risk assessments, etc., as defined at lines 89 - 107) provided to Buyer, or indicate "none available.")
 (2) SELLER CERTIFICATION: The undersigned Seller has reviewed the information above and certifies, to the best of their knowledge, that the information provided by them is true and accurate.

05	(X) (ALL Sellers' signatures) Print Names Here Copy Ewers Kevin Ewers Chris Ewers (Date)		
25 26	(ALL Sellers' signatures) Print Names Here Corey Ewers Kevin Ewers Chris Ewers (Date)		
27	Seller Obligations under the Federal Lead-Based Paint Disclosure Rules		
28	(Based upon 40 CFR Chapter 1, Part 745, Subpart F, §§745.103, 745.107, 745.110, 745.113 & 745.115; and 24 CFR subtitle A,		
29	Part 35, Subpart H, §§35.86, 35.88, 35.90, 35.92 & 35.94, which all are collectively referred to in this Addendum as Federal LBP Law.)		
30	DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS FOR SELLERS. (a) The following activities shall be completed before the Buyer is obligated		
31	under any contract to purchase target housing that is not otherwise an exempt transaction pursuant to Federal Law. Nothing in this		
32	section implies a positive obligation on the Seller to conduct any risk assessment and/or inspection or any reduction activities.		
33	(1) Provide LBP Pamphlet to Buyer. The Seller shall provide the Buyer with an EPA-approved lead hazard information		
34	pamphlet. Such pamphlets include the EPA document entitled Protect Your Family From Lead In Your Home (EPA		
35	#747-K-99-001) or an equivalent pamphlet that has been approved for use in this state by EPA. (2) <u>Disclosure of Known LBP to Buyer</u> . The Seller shall disclose to the Buyer the presence of any known lead-based		
36 37	paint and/or lead-based paint hazards in the target housing being sold. The Seller shall also disclose any additional		
37 38	information available concerning the known lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards, such as the basis for the		
39	determination that lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards exist, the location of lead-based paint and/or lead-based		
40	paint hazards, and the condition of painted surfaces (chipping, cracked, peeling).		
41	(3) <u>Disclosure of Known LBP & LBP Records to Agent</u> . The Seller shall disclose to each agent the presence of any		
42	known lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards in the target housing being sold and the existence of any available		
43	records or reports pertaining to lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards. The Seller shall also disclose any		
44	additional information available concerning the known lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards, such as the basis		
45	for the determination that lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards exist, the location of lead-based paint and/or		
46	lead-based paint hazards, and the condition of the painted surfaces (chipping, cracked, peeling).		
47	(4) <u>Provision of Available LBP Records & Reports to Buyer.</u> The Seller shall provide the Buyer with any records or reports		
48	available (see line 88) to the Seller pertaining to lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards in the target housing being sold. This requirement includes records or reports regarding common areas. This requirement also includes records or reports		
49 50	regarding other residential dwellings in multifamily target housing, provided that such information is part of a risk assessment and/or		
51	inspection or a reduction of lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards in the target housing as a whole.		
52	(b) <u>Disclosure Prior to Acceptance of Offer.</u> If any of the disclosure activities identified in lines 30-51 occurs after the Buyer		
53	has provided an offer to purchase the housing, the Seller shall complete the required disclosure activities prior to accepting		
54	the Buyer's offer and allow the Buyer an opportunity to review the information and possibly amend the offer.		
Driftless Area, LLC, 27128 Hwy 14 Richland Center WI 53581			
Pho	ne: (608)647-9050 Fax: (608)647-9080 Ted Greenheck Village LNR		

Produced with ZipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 www.zipLogix.com

CERTIFICATION AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF LBP DISCLOSURE. (a) Seller requirements. Each contract to sell target 55 housing shall include an attachment or addendum containing the following elements, in the language of the contract (e.g., English, 56 Spanish): 57 (1) Lead Warning Statement. A Lead Warning Statement consisting of the following language: 58 Every purchaser of any interest in residential real property on which a residential dwelling was built prior to 1978 is notified 59 that such property may present exposure to lead from lead-based paint that may place young children at risk of developing lead 60 poisoning. Lead poisoning in young children may produce permanent neurological damage, including learning disabilities, 61 reduced intelligence guotient, behavorial problems, and impaired memory. Lead poisoning also poses a particular risk to 62 pregnant women. The seller of any interest in residential real property is required to provide the buyer with any information on 63 lead-based paint hazards from risk assessments or inspections in the Seller's possession and notify the buyer of any known 64 lead-based paint hazards. A risk assessment or inspection for possible lead-based paint hazards is recommended prior to 65 purchase. 66 (2) Disclosure of Known LBP & LBP Information Re: the Property. A statement by the Seller disclosing the presence of 67 known lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards in the target housing being sold or indicating no knowledge of the 68 presence of lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards. The Seller shall also provide any additional information 69 available concerning the known lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards, such as the basis for the determination 70 that lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards exist, the location of the lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint 71 hazards, and the condition of the painted surfaces (chipping, cracked, peeling, dust, etc.). 72 (3) List of Available LBP Records & Reports Provided to Buyer. A list of any records or reports available to the Seller 73 pertaining to lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards in the housing that have been provided to the Buyer. If no 74 such records or reports are available, the Seller shall so indicate. 75 (4) Buyer Acknowledgment of Receipt of Disclosures, Records & Pamphlet, A statement by the Buyer affirming receipt 76 of the information set out in lines 67 - 75 and a lead hazard information pamphlet approved by EPA. 77 (5) Buyer Acknowledgment of Receipt of Opportunity for LBP Inspection. A statement by the Buyer that he or she has either: 78 (i) received the opportunity to conduct the risk assessment or inspection required per lines 123 - 127; or (ii) waived the opportunity. 79 (6) Agent Certification. When one or more real estate agents are involved in the transaction to sell target housing. 80 a statement from each agent that: (i) The agent has informed the Seller of the Seller's obligations under 81 Federal LBP Law; and (ii) the agent is aware of his or her duty to ensure compliance with Federal LBP Law. Agents ensure 82 compliance by informing Seller of his or her obligations and by making sure that the Seller or the agent personally completes 83 the required activities. Buver's agents paid solely by Buver are exempt. 84 (7) Signatures. The signatures of all Sellers and Buyers, and all agents subject to Federal LBP Law (see lines 80 - 84) 85 certifying to the accuracy of their statements to the best of their knowledge, along with the dates of the signatures. 86 DEFINITIONS: 87 Available means in the possession of or reasonably obtainable by the Seller at the time of the disclosure. 88 Abatement means the permanent elimination of lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards by methods such as 89 removing, replacing, encapsulating, containing, sealing or enclosing lead-based paint with special materials, in conformance 90 with any applicable legal requirements. 91 Buyer means one or more individuals or entities who enter into a contract to purchase an interest in target housing (referred 92 to in the singular whether one or more). 93 Inspection means: (1) a surface-by-surface investigation to determine the presence of lead-based paint, and (2) the provision 94 of a report explaining the results of the investigation. 95 Lead-based paint means paint or other surface coatings that contain lead equal to or in excess of 1.0 milligram per square 96 centimeter or 0.5 percent by weight. 97 Lead-based paint hazard means any condition that causes exposure to lead from lead-contaminated dust, lead-contaminated 98 soil, or lead-contaminated paint that is deteriorated or present in accessible surfaces, friction surfaces, or impact surfaces 99 100 that would result in adverse human health effects as established by the appropriate Federal agency. 101 Reduction means designed to reduce or eliminate human exposure to lead-based paint hazards through interim controls, 102 abatement, etc. 103 Risk assessment means an on-site investigation to determine and report the presence of lead-based paint, and to evaluate 104 and report the extent, nature, severity, and location of lead-based paint hazards in residential dwellings, including: (1) 105 information gathering regarding the age and history of the housing and occupancy by children under 6; (2) visual inspection; 106 (3) limited wipe sampling or other environmental sampling techniques; (4) other activity as may be appropriate; and (5) 107 provision of a report explaining the results of the investigation. 108 Seller means one or more individuals or entities who transfer, in return for consideration, (1) legal title to target housing, in 109 whole or in part; (2) shares in a cooperatively owned project; or (3) an interest in a leasehold (referred to in the singular 110 whether one or more).

111 Target housing means any housing constructed prior to 1978, except housing for the elderly or persons with disabilities (unless 112 any child who is less than 6 years of age resides or is expected to reside in such housing) or any 0-bedroom dwelling.

[page 3 of 3, Addendum S]

113 AGENT(S) ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND CERTIFICATION.

114 (1) ACKNOWLEDGMENT: All agent(s) in this transaction subject to Federal LBP Law (see lines 80 - 84) hereby 115 acknowledge that: (1) the Seller was informed of his or her obligations under the Federal LBP Law (see lines 27 - 54 and 55 -116 112); and (2) they are aware of their duty to ensure compliance with the requirements of Federal LBP Law.

(2) CERTIFICATION: The undersigned agents have reviewed the information above and certify, to the best of their 117 118 knowledge, that the information provided by them is true and accurate.

119 (X)	12/22/2020
119 (X) 120 (Agent's signature) ▲ Print Agent & Firm Names Here ▶ Ted Breenheck, Driftless Area LLC	(Date) ⊾
121 (X)	(Date) 🛓

(Agent's signature) A Print Agent & Firm Names Here 122

123 BUYER'S OPPORTUNITY TO CONDUCT AN EVALUATION (LBP Inspection Contingency). (a) Before a Buyer is 124 obligated under any contract to purchase target housing, the Seller shall permit the Buyer a 10-day period (unless the parties 125 mutually agree, in writing, upon a different period of time) to conduct a risk assessment or inspection for the presence of 126 lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards. (b) Not withstanding lines 123 - 126, a Buyer may waive the opportunity 127 to conduct the risk assessment or inspection by so indicating in writing.

128 BUYER INSPECTION CONTINGENCY, ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND CERTIFICATION.

129 (1) LEAD-BASED PAINT INSPECTION CONTINGENCY: [Buyer to check one box at lines 131, 147 or 148. If no box is 130 checked, Buyer is deemed to have elected a 10-day contingency per lines 131 - 146.] 131 LEAD-BASED PAINT INSPECTION CONTINGENCY: This Offer is contingent upon a federal or state certified lead

132 inspector or lead risk assessor conducting an inspection or risk assessment of the Property, at Buyer's cost, which discloses 133 no lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards (see lines 96 - 100) (collectively referred to as LBP). This contingency 134 shall be deemed satisfied, and Buyer will have elected to take the Property "as is" with respect to LBP, unless Buyer, within 135 ______ days of acceptance, delivers to Seller a copy of the inspector's or risk assessor's written report and a written notice 136 listing the LBP identified in the report to which the Buyer objects. Buyer agrees to concurrently deliver a copy of the report 137 and notice to the listing broker, if any. A proposed <u>amendment will not</u> satisfy this notice requirement.

138 RIGHT TO CURE: Seller (shall)(shall not) STRIKE ONE have a right to cure [if neither struck, Seller shall have the right to 139 cure]. If Seller has the right to cure, Seller may satisfy this contingency by: (1) delivering, within 10 days of receipt of Buyer's 140 notice, written notice of Seller's election to abate the LBP identified by the Buyer; and (2) providing Buyer, no later than 3 days 141 prior to closing, with certification from a certified lead supervisor or project designer, or other certified lead contractor that 142 the identified LBP has been abated. This Offer shall be null and void if Buyer makes timely delivery of the above notice and 143 report and: (1) Seller does not have a right to cure or (2) Seller has a right to cure but: a) Seller delivers notice that Seller will 144 not cure or b) Seller does not timely deliver the notice of election to cure. "Abate" shall mean to permanently eliminate the 145 identified LBP by methods such as removing, replacing, encapsulating, containing, sealing or enclosing the identified LBP, 146 in conformance with the requirements of all applicable law.

- 147 D Buyer elects the LBP contingency Buyer has attached to this Addendum S.
- 148 How Buyer waives the opportunity for a LBP inspection or assessment.

149 (2) BUYER ACKNOWLEDGMENT: Buyer hereby acknowledges and certifies that Buyer has: (a) received the Seller's 150 above-listed disclosures, reports and records concerning any known LBP in or on the Property (see lines 12 - 22); (b) received 151 a lead hazard information pamphlet approved by the EPA; and (c) received the opportunity to conduct a LBP risk assessment 152 or inspection of the Property or has waived the opportunity (see lines 131 - 148 above).

153 (3) BUYER CERTIFICATION: The undersigned Buyer has reviewed the information above and certifies, to the best of their 154 knowledge, that the information provided by them is true and accurate.

12/22/2020 Ula 155 (X) (ALL Buyers' signatures) Print Names Here > Dan Quinn - Mayor - Village of Lone Rock 156 (Date) 🛦

Copyright © 2007 by Wisconsin REALTORS® Association Drafted by Attorney Debra Peterson Conrad No representation is made as to the legal validity of any provision or the adequacy of any provision in any specific transaction

157

UNIT OF GENERAL LOCAL GOVERNMENT (UGLG) NAME: Richland County

ACQUISITION, RELOCATION, & DEMOLITION QUESTIONNAIRE

for a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)

This questionnaire will be used by the Division of Energy, Housing and Community Resources to determine if you have adequately planned and budgeted for acquisition, relocation, down payment assistance, rehabilitation, and demolition activities related to your proposed CDBG project. Requirements are referenced in the Uniform Relocation and Real Property Acquisition Policies of 1970, as amended (URA) and Section 104(d) of the Housing and Community Development Act (Barney Frank Amendment).

Answer the following Acquisition, Relocation, Demolition, and Conversion questions (**Yes**, **No**, or **N/A**). The proposed CDBG project will involve the:

- 1. Yes Voluntary Acquisition of:
 - _n/a Temporary easement(s)

_n/a Permanent easement(s)

- <u>n/a</u> Vacant land
- Yes Land and building(s)
- no Will tenants be, or have they been, displaced?
- 2. N/A Involuntary Acquisition of:
 - n/a Temporary easement(s)

 - n/a Vacant land
 - n/a Land and building(s)

n/a Are any units occupied? If yes, indicate whether:

- n/a Relocation assistance will be provided or has been provided
- Residential occupant is low- and moderate-income

3. N/A Donation of:

- n/a Temporary easement(s)
- n/a Permanent easement(s)
- n/a Vacant land
- n/a Land and building(s)
 - n/a Tenant(s) will be displaced or have been displaced

n/a Tenant(s) is residential occupant and is low- and moderate-income

- 4. <u>N/A</u> Demolition of residential units or conversion/rehabilitation of residential unit to another use, and the:
 - N/A Unit is occupiable
 - N/A Unit rents or would rent at or below the Fair Market Rent
 - N/A Unit will be replaced
 - **NOTE:** If "yes" to any of the three questions above, attach documentation required and listed in your Uniform Relocation Plan.
 - N/A Unit is not occupiable and evidence is attached

(continued on the next page)

Village Center Park

Project Location





102 E Union St, Lone Rock, WI 53581












LEGEND

PROPOSED VILLAGE PARK LOCATION

 \wedge

Ν

Ο

R T

Η

PROPOSED 4" REINFORCED CONCRETE SIDEWALK

EXHIBIT II

State and Federal Regulatory Requirements for CDBG-Assisted Projects

- 1. POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE (Attached)
- 2. CONCFLICT OF INTEREST CLAUSE (Attached)
- 3. LOBBYING CERTIFICATION (Attached)
- 4. DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES (Attached)
- 5. SECTION 3 CLAUSE (Attached)
- 6. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION CLAUSE (Attached)
- 7. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE (Attached)
- 8. MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE/WOMAN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE WEB RESOURCES (Attached)
- 9. DAVIS-BACON AND RELATED ACTS CLAUSE (Attached)
- 10. FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISIONS (Attached)

THE CDBG DOCUMENT LISTED ABOVE ARE FROM THE CDBG IMPLEMENTATION HANDBOOK AND HANDBOOK CHAPTER ATTACHMENTS ON THE BUREAU OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT WEBSITE AT:

https://doa.wi.gov/Pages/LocalGovtsGrants/CDBGImplementationHandbook.aspx

POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE

Community Development Block Grant – CDBG-CLOSE Program Richland County, Wl

Do you have family or business ties to any of the people listed below? Yes No

If yes, please check the box next to the name(s) of the individual(s) and describe the relationship in the space provided below:

ELECTED OFFICIALS:

Marty Brewer – Richland County Board - Chairman

- Dave Turk Richland County Board Vice Chairman
- Sean Murphy-Lopez Richland County Finance Committee Chairman

COUNTY OF RICHLAND - ADMINISTRATION, DEPARTMENT HEADS AND LEGAL COUNSEL:

- Clinton Langreck County Administrator
 - Jasen Glasbrenner Richland Economic Development Director

Description of Relationship(s):

Please Note: The name of any bidder with a potential conflict of interest will be disclosed at the Richland County Board and Committee meeting in which bids are discussed. Potential conflicts of interest will be reviewed in accordance with 24 CFR 570.489(h).

Printed Name of Individual	Title	Signature
Name of Business/Firm/Company		Date Signed [MM/DD/YYYY]

24 CFR 570.489(h) CONFLICT OF INTEREST CLAUSE FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAMS

Code of Federal Regulations Title 24 570.489(h) Program administrative requirements

(h) Conflict of interest:

(1) Applicability. (i) In the procurement of supplies, equipment, construction, and services by the States, units of local general governments, and sub-recipients, the conflict of interest provisions in paragraph (g) of this section shall apply.

(ii) In all cases not governed by paragraph (g) of this section, this paragraph (h) shall apply. Such cases include the acquisition and disposition of real property and the provision of assistance with CDBG funds by the unit of general local government or its sub-recipients, to individuals, businesses and other private entities.

(2) Conflicts prohibited. Except for eligible administrative or personnel costs, the general rule is that no persons described in paragraph (h)(3) of this section who exercise or have exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to CDBG activities assisted under this subpart or who are in a position to participate in a decision-making process or gain inside information with regard to such activities, may obtain a financial interest or benefit from the activity, or have an interest or benefit from the activity, or have an interest or benefit from the activity, or have an interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for themselves or those with whom they have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one year thereafter.

(3) Persons covered. The conflict of interest provisions for paragraph (h)(2) of this section apply to any person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or elected official or appointed official of the state, or of a unit of general local government, or of any designated public agencies, or sub-recipients which are receiving CDBG funds.

(4) Exceptions: Thresholds requirements. Upon written request by the State, an exception to the provisions of paragraph (h)(2) of this section involving an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or elected official or appointed official of the state may be granted by HUD on a case-by-case basis. In all other cases, the state may grant such an exception upon written request of the unit of general local government provided the state shall fully document its determination in compliance with all requirements of paragraph (h)(4) of this section including the state's position with respect to each factor at paragraph (h)(5) of this section and such documentation shall be available for review by the public and by HUD. An exception may be granted after it is determined that such an exception will serve to further the purpose of the Act and the effective and efficient administration of the program or project of the state or unit of general local government as appropriate. An exception may be considered only after the state or unit of general local government, as appropriate, has provided the following:

(i) A disclosure of the nature of the conflict, accompanied by an assurance that there has been public disclosure of the conflict and a description of how the public disclosure was made; and (ii) An opinion of the attorney for the state or the unit of general local government, as appropriate, that the interest for which the exception is sought would not violate state or local law.

(5) Factors to be considered for exceptions. In determining whether to grant a requested exception after the requirements of paragraph (h)(4) of this section have been satisfactorily met, the cumulative effect of the following factors, where applicable, shall be considered:

(i) Whether the exception would provide a significant cost benefit or an essential degree of expertise to the program or project which would otherwise not be available;

(ii) Whether an opportunity was provided for open competitive bidding or negotiation;

(iii) Whether the person affected is a member of a group or class of low or moderate income persons intended to be the beneficiaries of the assisted activity, and the exception will permit such person to receive generally the same interests or benefits as are being made available or provided to the group or class;

(iv) Whether the affected person has withdrawn from his or her functions or responsibilities, or the decision-making process with respect to the specific assisted activity in question;

(v) Whether the interest or benefit was present before the affected person was in a position as described in paragraph (h)(3) of this section;

(vi) Whether undue hardship will result either to the State or the unit of general local government or the person affected when weighed against the public interest served by avoiding the prohibited conflict; and

(vii) Any other relevant considerations.

Division of Energy, Housing and Community Resources Lobbying Certification

 GRANTEE/UGLG NAME:
 Richland County

 DEHCR GRANT AGREEMENT #:
 CDBG CL-PF 21-33

LOBBYING CERTIFICATION

FROM THE A Municipality/UGLG: ______ Contractor/Sub-Contractor

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his/her knowledge and belief, that:

- No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- 2. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.
- 3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including sub-contracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

Name of Municipality/UGLG/Business/Firm

Signature of the Chief Elected Official, Owner, or Chief Executive Officer

Title

Date Signed

Printed Name of the Chief Elected Official, Owner, or Chief Executive Officer

DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES Approved by OME			
Complete this form to disclose	Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352 0348-0046		
(See reverse for public burden disclosure.)			
1. Type of Federal Action: 2. Status o	2. Status of Federal Action: 3. Report Type:		
a. contract	a. bid/offer/application	a. initial filing	
b. grant	[⊥] b. initial award	b. material change	
c. cooperative agreement	c. post-award	For Material Change Only:	
d. loan		year quarter	
e. loan guarantee		date of last report	
f. loan insurance			
4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity:	5. If Reporting Er and Address of	ntity in No. 4 is a Subaw ⁻ Prime:	ardee, Enter Name
Congressional District, if known:	Congressional	District, if known:	
6. Federal Department/Agency:	7. Federal Progra	m Name/Description:	
	CFDA Number,	if applicable:	
8. Federal Action Number, if known:	9. Award Amoun	t, if known :	
	\$		
10. a. Name and Address of Lobbying Regist (<i>if individual, last name, first name, MI</i>):			ding address if
11. Information requested through this form is authorized by title 31 U.S.C. 1352. This disclosure of lobbying activities is a material representation	C. section Signature:		
upon which reliance was placed by the tier above when this transaction v or entered into. This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 13	vas made Print Name:		
information will be available for public inspection. Any person who fails required disclosure shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$1	to file the	Title:	
not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.	Telephone No.:		Date:
Federal Use Only:			rized for Local Reproduction dard Form LLL (Rev. 7-97)

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF SF-LLL, DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES

This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether subawardee or prime Federal recipient, at the initiation or receipt of a covered Federal action, or a material change to a previous filing, pursuant to title 31 U.S.C. section 1352. The filing of a form is required for each payment or agreement to make payment to any lobbying entity for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with a covered Federal action. Complete all items that apply for both the initial filing and material change report. Refer to the implementing guidance published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional information.

- 1. Identify the type of covered Federal action for which lobbying activity is and/or has been secured to influence the outcome of a covered Federal action.
- 2. Identify the status of the covered Federal action.
- 3. Identify the appropriate classification of this report. If this is a followup report caused by a material change to the information previously reported, enter the year and quarter in which the change occurred. Enter the date of the last previously submitted report by this reporting entity for this covered Federal action.
- 4. Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the reporting entity. Include Congressional District, if known. Check the appropriate classification of the reporting entity that designates if it is, or expects to be, a prime or subaward recipient. Identify the tier of the subawardee, e.g., the first subawardee of the prime is the 1st tier. Subawards include but are not limited to subcontracts, subgrants and contract awards under grants.
- 5. If the organization filing the report in item 4 checks "Subawardee," then enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the prime Federal recipient. Include Congressional District, if known.
- 6. Enter the name of the Federal agency making the award or loan commitment. Include at least one organizationallevel below agency name, if known. For example, Department of Transportation, United States Coast Guard.
- 7. Enter the Federal program name or description for the covered Federal action (item 1). If known, enter the full Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number for grants, cooperative agreements, loans, and loan commitments.
- 8. Enter the most appropriate Federal identifying number available for the Federal action identified in item 1 (e.g., Request for Proposal (RFP) number; Invitation for Bid (IFB) number; grant announcement number; the contract, grant, or loan award number; the application/proposal control number assigned by the Federal agency). Include prefixes, e.g., "RFP-DE-90-001."
- 9. For a covered Federal action where there has been an award or loan commitment by the Federal agency, enter the Federal amount of the award/loan commitment for the prime entity identified in item 4 or 5.
- 10. (a) Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the lobbying registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 engaged by the reporting entity identified in item 4 to influence the covered Federal action.
 - (b) Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing services, and include full address if different from 10 (a). Enter Last Name, First Name, and Middle Initial (MI).
- 11. The certifying official shall sign and date the form, print his/her name, title, and telephone number.

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act, as amended, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a valid OMB Control Number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is OMB No. 0348-0046. Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 10 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0046), Washington, DC 20503.

ATTACHMENT 6-B: SECTION 3 CONTRACT LANGUAGE REQUIREMENTS

Include the following language in all contracts and sub-contracts funded with CDBG dollars**:

- 1. <u>Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968</u>. The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u (Section 3). The purpose of Section 3 is to ensure that employment and other economic opportunities generated by HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects covered by Section 3, shall, to the greatest extent feasible, be directed to low- and very low-income persons, particularly persons who are recipients of HUD assistance for housing.
- 2. The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR 135, which implement Section 3. As evidenced by their execution of this contract, the parties to this contract certify that they are under no contractual or other impediment that would prevent them from complying with the part 135 regulation.
- 3. The contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or representative of workers with which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other understanding, if any, a notice advising the labor organization or workers' representative of the contractor's commitments under this Section 3 clause, and will post copies of the notice in conspicuous places at the work site where both employees and applicants for training and employment positions can see the notice. The notice shall describe the Section 3 preference, shall set forth minimum number and job titles subject to hire, availability of apprenticeship, and training positions, the qualifications for each; and the name and location of the person(s) taking applications for each of the positions; and the anticipated date the work shall begin.
- 4. The contractor agrees to include this Section 3 clause in every sub-contract subject to compliance with regulations in 24 CFR 135, and agrees to take appropriate action, as provided in an applicable provision of the sub-contractor in this Section 3 clause, upon a finding that the sub-contractor is in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR 135. The contractor will not sub-contract with any sub-contractor where the contractor has notice or knowledge that the sub-contractor has been found in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR 135.
- 5. The contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, including training positions, that are filled (1) after the contractor is selected but before the contract is executed, and (2) with persons other than those to whom the regulations of 24 CFR 135 require employment opportunities to be directed, were not filled to circumvent the contractor's obligations under 24 CFR 135.
- 6. Non-compliance with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR 135 may result in sanctions, termination of this contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD assisted contracts.
- 7. With respect to work performed in connection with Section 3 covered Indian housing assistance, Section 7(b) of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 450e) also applies to the work to be performed under this contract. Section 7(b) requires that to the greatest extent feasible: (i) preference and opportunities for training and employment shall be given to Indians; and (ii) preference in the award of contracts and sub-contracts shall be given to Indian organizations and Indian-Owned Economic Enterprises. Parties to this contract that are subject to the provisions of Section 3 and Section 7(b) agree to comply with Section 3 to the maximum extent feasible, but not in derogation of compliance with section 7(b).

^{**} This language is only required for those contracts and sub-contracts regarding project activities that are funded with CDBG dollars. However, it is <u>strongly recommended</u> that this language be included in ALL contracts regardless of the funding source to avoid any unnecessary problems later in the project cycle.

Division of Energy, Housing and Community Resources

Affirmative Action Requirements (EO 11246)

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION REQUIREMENTS (EO 11246)

(Applicable to construction contracts/sub-contracts exceeding \$10,000)

- 1. The Offeror's or Bidder's attention is called to the "Equal Opportunity Clause" and the "Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications" set forth herein.
- 2. The goals and timetables for minority and female participation, expressed in percentage terms for the contractor's aggregate workforce in each trade on all construction work in the covered area, are as follows:

Goals for Women = 6.9 percent (this goal applies nationwide)

Goals for minority participation = <u>1.7</u> (this goal applies county-wide) (Insert goals – see next page)

These goals are applicable to all the contractor's construction work (whether or not it is federal or federally assisted) performed in the covered area. If the contractor performs construction work in a geographic area located outside of the covered area, it shall apply the goals established for such geographic area where the work is actually performed. The contractor is also subject to the goals for both its federal and nonfederal construction.

- 3. The contractor's compliance with the Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR 60-4 shall be based on its implementation of the Equal Opportunity Clause, specific affirmative action obligations required by the specifications set forth in 41 CFR 60-4.3 (a), and its efforts to meet the goals established for the geographical area where the contract resulting from this solicitation is to be performed. The hours of minority and female employment and training must be substantially uniform throughout the length of the contract and in each trade, and the contractor shall make a good faith effort to employ minorities and women evenly on each of its projects. The transfer of minority or female employees or trainees from contractor to contractor or from project to project for the sole purpose of meeting the contractor's goals shall be a violation of the contract, the Executive Order, and the regulations in 41 CFR 60-4. Compliance with the goals will be measured against the total work hours performed.
- 4. The contractor shall provide written notification to the Director of the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs within 10 working days of award of any construction sub-contract in excess of \$10,000 at any tier for construction work under the contract resulting from this solicitation. The notification shall list the name, address, and telephone number of the sub-contractor; employer identification number; estimated dollar amount of the sub-contract; estimated starting and completion dates of the sub-contract; and the geographical area in which the contract is to be performed.

As used in this notice, and in the contract resulting from this solicitation, the "covered area" is a description of the geographical areas where the contract is to be performed indicating the state, county and city, if any.

GOALS FOR WOMEN AND MINORITY UTILIZATION IN CONSTRUCTION

These goals apply to all federally assisted construction contracts and sub-contracts in excess of \$10,000 (EO 11246). All hours of work (federal and non-federal) in each trade, regardless of the location of work, are subject to these goals.

Directions: Use the applicable county percentage below to fill in the "Goals for minority participation" on the previous page.

- A. Goals for Women--6.9 percent (this goal applies nationwide).
- B. Minority Goals--percentage listed for each county:

Adams Ashland Barron Bayfield Brown Buffalo Burnett Calumet Calumet Chippewa Clark Columbia Crawford Dane Dodge Door Douglas Dunn	1.7 1.2 .6 1.2 1.3 .6 2.2 .9 .5 .6 1.7 .5 2.2 7.0 1.0 1.0 1.0	lowa Iron Jackson Jefferson Juneau Kenosha Kewaunee La Crosse Lafayette Langlade Lincoln Manitowoc Marathon Marinette Marquette Menomonie Milwaukee	1.7 1.2 .6 7.0 .6 3.0 1.0 .8 .5 .6 .6 1.0 .6 1.0 1.7 1.0 8.0	Polk Portage Price Racine Richland Rock Rusk St. Croix Sauk Sawyer Shawano Sheboygan Taylor Trempealeau Vernon Vilas Walworth	2.2 .6 .6 8.4 1.7 3.1 .6 2.9 1.7 .6 1.0 7.0 .6 .6 .6 .6 7.0
Door	1.0	Marquette	1.7	Vernon	.6
Douglas	1.0	Menomonie	1.0	Vilas	.6
Fond du Lac	1.0	Oneida	.6	Waukesha	8.0
Forest	1.0	Outagamie	.9	Waupaca	1.0
Grant	.5	Ozaukee	8.0	Waushara	1.0
Green	1.7	Pepin	.6	Winnebago	.9
Green Lake	1.0	Pierce	2.2	Wood	.6

ATTACHMENT 6-D: FEDERAL EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CLAUSES CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT SPECIFICATIONS (EO 11246)

(Applicable to construction contracts/sub-contracts exceeding \$10,000)

- 1. As used in these specifications: (41 CFR 60-4.3)
 - a. "Covered area" means the geographical area described in the solicitation from which this contract resulted.
 - b. "Director" means Director, Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, United States Department of Labor, or any person to whom the Director delegates authority.
 - c. "Employer Identification Number" means the Federal Social Security number used on the Employer's Quarterly Federal Tax Return, U.S. Treasury Department Form 941.
 - d. "Minority" includes:
 - i. Black (all persons having origins in any of the Black African racial groups not of Hispanic origin);
 - ii. Hispanic (all persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish Culture or origin, regardless of race);
 - iii. Asian and Pacific Islander (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands); and
 - iv. American Indian or Alaskan Native (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of North America and maintaining identifiable tribal affiliations through membership and participation or community identification).
- 2. Whenever the contractor, or any sub-contractor at any tier, sub-contracts a portion of the work involving any construction trade, it shall physically include in each sub-contract in excess of \$10,000 the provisions of these specifications and the notice which contains the applicable goals for minority and female participation and which is set forth in the solicitations from which this contract resulted.
- 3. If the contractor is participating (pursuant to 41 CFR 60-4.5) in a Hometown Plan approved by the U.S. Department of Labor in the covered area either individually or through an association, its affirmative action obligations on all work in the Plan area (including goals and timetables) shall be in accordance with that Plan for those trades which have unions participating in the Plan. Contractors must be able to demonstrate their participation in and compliance with the provisions of any such Hometown Plan. Each contractor or sub-contractor participating in an approved plan is individually required to comply with its obligations under the EEO clause, and to make a good faith effort to achieve each goal under the Plan in each trade in which it has employees. The overall good faith performance by other contractor's or sub-contractor's failure to take good faith effort to achieve the Plan goals and timetables.

The contractor shall implement the specific affirmative action standards provided in paragraphs 7(a) through (p) of these specifications. The goals set forth in the solicitation from which this contract resulted are expressed as percentages of the total hours of employment and training of minority and female utilization the contractor should reasonably be able to achieve in each construction trade in which it has employees in the covered areas. Covered construction contractors performing contracts in geographical areas, where they do not have a federal or federally assisted construction contract, shall apply the minority and female goals established for the geographic area where the contract is being performed. Goals are published periodically in the Federal Register in notice form and such notices may be obtained from any Office of

Federal Contract Compliance Programs office or from federal procurement contracting officers. The contractor is expected to make substantially uniform progress in meeting its goals in each craft during the period specified.

- 4. Neither the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement, nor the failure by a union with whom the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement to refer either minorities or women, shall excuse the contractor's obligations under these specifications, Executive Order 11246, nor the regulations promulgated pursuant thereto.
- 5. In order for the non-working training hours of apprentices and trainees to be counted in meeting the goals, such apprentices and trainees must be employed by the contractor during the training period, and the contractor must have made a commitment to employ the apprentices and trainees at the completion of their training, subject to the availability of employment opportunities. Trainees must be trained pursuant to training programs approved by the U.S. Department of Labor.
- 6. The contractor shall take specific affirmative actions to ensure equal employment opportunity. The evaluation of the contractor's compliance with these specifications shall be based upon its effort to achieve maximum results from its actions. The contractor shall document these efforts fully, and shall implement affirmative action steps at least as extensive as the following:
 - a) Ensure and maintain a working environment, free of harassment, intimidation, and coercion at all sites, and in all facilities where the contractor's employees are assigned to work. The contractor, where possible, will assign two or more women to each construction project. The contractor shall specifically ensure that all foremen, superintendents, and other on-site supervisory personnel are aware of and carry out the contractor's obligation to maintain such a working environment, with specific attention to minority and female individuals working at such sites or in such facilities.
 - b) Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female recruitment sources, provide written notification to minority and female recruitment sources and to community organizations when the contractor or its unions have employment opportunities available, and maintain a record of the organizations' responses.
 - c) Maintain a current file of the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of each minority and female applicant and minority or female referral from a union, a recruitment source or community organization and what, if any, action was taken with respect to each such individual. If such individual was sent to the union hiring hall for referral and was not referred back to the contractor by the union, or if referred, not employed by the contractor, this shall be documented in the file with the reason along with whatever additional actions the contractor may have taken.
 - d) Provide immediate written notification to the Director when the union contractor has a collective bargaining agreement which has/has not referred a minority person or woman, or when the contractor has other information that the union referral process has impeded the contractor's efforts to meet its obligations.
 - e) Develop training opportunities and/or participate in training programs for the area which expressly include minorities and women, including upgrading programs and apprenticeship and trainee programs relevant to the contractor's employment needs, especially those programs funded or approved by the Department of Labor. The contractor shall provide notice of these programs to the sources compiled under 7(b) above.
 - f) Disseminate the contractor's EEO policy by providing notice of the policy to unions and training programs and requesting their cooperation in assisting the contractor in meeting its EEO obligations; by including it in any policy manual and collective bargaining agreement; by publicizing it in the company newspaper, annual report, etc.; by specific review of the

policy with all management personnel and with all minority and female employees at least once a year; and by posting the company EEO policy on bulletin boards accessible to all employees at each location where construction work is performed.

- g) Review, at least annually, the company's EEO policy and affirmative action obligations under these specifications with all employees having any responsibility for hiring, assignment, layoff, termination, or other employment decisions including specific review of these items with on-site supervisory personnel such as Superintendents, General Foremen, etc., prior to the initiation of construction work at any job site. A written record shall be made and maintained identifying the time and place of these meetings, persons attending, subject matter discussed, and disposition of the subject matter.
- h) Disseminate the contractor's EEO policy externally by including it in any advertising in the news media, specifically including minority and female news media, and providing written notification and discussing the contractor's EEO policy with other contractors and subcontractors with whom the contractor does, or anticipates, doing business.
- i) Direct its recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, female and community organizations, to schools with minority and female students, and to minority and female recruitment and training organizations serving the contractor's recruitment area and employment needs. Not later than one-month prior to the date of the acceptance of applications for apprenticeship of other training by any recruitment source, the contractor shall send written notification to organizations such as the above, describing the openings, screening procedures, and tests to be used in the selection process.
- j) Encourage present minority and female employees to recruit other minority persons and women and, where reasonable, provide after school, summer, and vacation employment to minority and female youth both on the site and in other areas of a contractor's work force.
- k) Validate all tests and other selection requirements where there is an obligation to do so under 41 CFR 60-3.
- Conduct, at least annually, an inventory and evaluation at least of all minority and female personnel for promotional opportunities and encourage these employees to seek or to prepare for, through appropriate training, etc., such opportunities.
- m) Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work assignments, and other personnel practices, do not have a discriminatory effect by continually monitoring all personnel and employment related activities to ensure that the EEO policy and the contractor's obligations under these specifications are being carried out.
- n) Ensure that all facilities and company activities are non-segregated except that separate or single-user toilet and necessary changing facilities shall be provided to assure privacy between the sexes.
- Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers for sub-contractors from minority and female construction contractors and suppliers, including circulation of solicitations to minority and female contractor associations and other business associations.
- p) Conduct a review, at least annually, of all supervisors' adherence to and performance under the contractor's EEO policies and affirmative action obligations.
- 7. Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations that assist in fulfilling one or more of their affirmative action obligations [7 (a) through (p)]. The efforts of a contractor association, joint contractor-union, contractor-community, or other similar group of which the contractor is a member and participant, may be asserted as fulfilling any one or more of its obligations under 7(a) through (p). of these specifications provided that the contractor actively participates in the group, makes every effort to assure that the group has a positive impact on

the employment of minorities and women in the industry, ensures that the concrete benefits of the program are reflected in the contractor's minority and female work force participation, makes a good faith effort to meet its individual goals and timetables, and can provide access to documents that demonstrate the effectiveness of actions taken on behalf of the contractor. The obligations shall not be a defense for the contractor's noncompliance.

- 8. A single goal for minorities and a separate single goal for women must be established. The contractor, however, is required to provide equal employment opportunity and to take affirmative action for all minority groups, both male and female, and all women, both minority and non-minority. Consequently, the contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order if a particular group is employed in a substantially disparate manner (for example, even though the contractor has achieved its goal for women generally, the contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order if a specific minority group of women is underutilized).
- 9. The contractor shall not use the goals and timetables or affirmative action standards to discriminate against any person because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- 10. The contractor shall not enter into any sub-contract with any person or firm debarred from Government contracts pursuant to Executive Order 11246.
- 11. The contractor shall carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of these specifications and of the Equal Opportunity Clause, including suspension, termination, and cancellation of existing sub-contracts as may be imposed or ordered pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and its implementing regulations, by the Officer of Federal Contract Compliance Programs. Any contractor who fails to carry out such sanctions and penalties shall be in violation of these specifications and Executive Order 11246, as amended.
- 12. The contractor, in fulfilling its obligations under these specifications, shall implement specific affirmative action steps, at least as extensive as those standards prescribed in paragraph 7. If the contractor fails to comply with the requirements of the Executive Order, the implementing regulations or these specifications, the Director shall proceed in accordance with 41 CFR60-4.8.

The contractor shall designate a responsible official to monitor all employment-related activity to ensure that the company EEO policy is being carried out, to submit reports relating to the provisions hereof as may be required by the Government, and to keep records. Records shall at least include for each employee the name, address, telephone numbers, construction trade, union affiliation, if any, employee identification number when assigned, social security number, race, sex, status (e.g., mechanic, apprentice trainee, helper or laborer), dates of changes in status, hours worked per week in the indicated trade, rate of pay, and locations at which the work was performed. Records shall be maintained in an easily understandable and retrievable form; however, to the degree that existing records satisfy this requirement, contractors shall not be required to maintain separate records.

13. Nothing herein provided shall be construed as a limitation upon the application of other laws that establish different standards of compliance or upon the application of requirements for the hiring of local or other area residents (e.g., those under the Public Works Employment Act of 1977 and the Community Development Block Grant Program).

ATTACHMENT 7-R: MBE/WBE/DBE WEB RESOURCES



Resources for outreach to, contracting with, and certified registration for Minority-Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE) and Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) firms:

Department of Administration Certified Minority-Owned Business Enterprise (MBE) and Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE) Directory: <u>https://wisdp.wi.gov/search.aspx</u>

City of Madison Targeted Business Enterprise Program Directories: http://www.cityofmadison.com/dcr/aaTBDir.cfm

Department of Transportation Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program <u>https://wisconsindot.gov/Pages/doing-bus/civil-rights/dbe/default.aspx</u>

ATTACHMENT 7-B: DAVIS-BACON AND RELATED ACTS (DBRA)

A. <u>Force Account</u> - Under most Davis-Bacon statutes, only employees of contractors or subcontractors are subject to Davis-Bacon wage requirements. In some instances, rather than contracting or sub-contracting out construction work, a grant recipient performs the construction inhouse, with its own "force account" employees. Such force account work is <u>not</u> subject to Davis-Bacon wage requirements under statutes that cover only employees of contractors and subcontractors. Furthermore, the USDOL does not consider a state or local government to be a contractor, even if it enters into a contract to perform construction work (see 29 CFR Section 5.2(h)). However, under the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, a private firm that receives federal assistance funds indirectly from a recipient pursuant to a written procurement contract of sub-grant agreement that provides for the performance of construction work is considered a contractor or sub-contractor, and the force account exception **does not** apply to construction activity performed by employees of such a firm.

Laborers and mechanics employed by a local or state agency PHA (Public Housing Authority only), even though not employed by a contractor, are subject to Davis-Bacon when performing development work financed by the U.S. Housing Act of 1937, as amended. Davis-Bacon federal wage requirements are not applicable where such employees are used in work defined as major repairs (deferred maintenance) pursuant to 24 CFR 868.3 and 868.9(h), which constitute project operation rather than development.

B. <u>Compliance and Certification Parameters</u> - HUD policy clearly affords federal wage protection for all laborers and mechanics, regardless of contractual relationship. There is no exception to this protection for self-employed laborers or mechanics, including owners of businesses, sole proprietors, partners, corporate officers, or others. <u>Laborers and mechanics may not certify to the payment of their **own** federal wages **except** where the laborer or mechanic is the owner of a business working on the site of the work with his/her own crew.</u>

Accordingly, HUD and program participants responsible for labor standards administration and enforcement <u>may not</u> accept certified payrolls reporting single or multiple owners (e.g., partners) are certifying that they have paid to themselves the prevailing wage for their craft. <u>A sole proprietor may not submit a payroll reporting himself or herself as simply "Owner" signing the certification as to his/her own wage payment from "draws" or other payment methods. Nor may several mechanics submit a payroll reporting themselves as "partners" with one or more certifying as to the payment of their wages or salaries. <u>Such mechanics must instead be carried on the certified payroll of the contractor or sub-contractor for whom they are working and with whom they have executed a "contract" for services.</u></u>

In these cases, maintenance of an accurate accounting of weekly work hours including any overtime hours for such mechanics is essential. <u>Whatever method of compensation</u> computation <u>is</u> <u>utilized</u> (piecework, weekly contract draw performance), the amount of weekly compensation divided by the actual hours of work performed for that week <u>must result in an "effective" hourly</u> <u>wage rate</u> for that week that is not less than the prevailing hourly rate for the type of work involved. This computation must take into account overtime pay rates (i.e., one and one-half) for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours per week, pursuant to the CWHSSA, where applicable, and pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act where CWHSSA is not applicable.

The name, work classification, actual hours of work, effective hourly wage rate, and wage payment for each such mechanic and laborer must be reported and certified on the responsible employer's weekly payroll. Note that the effective hourly wage rate for such mechanics and laborers may fluctuate from week to week. However, the effective hourly wage rate may not be less than the minimum prevailing wage rate for the respective craft.

In any case, where the effective rate falls below the corresponding craft prevailing wage rate, the responsible employer must compensate the mechanic at no less than the prevailing wage rate on the wage determination for the craft.

- C. <u>Business Owners Working with Their Crew</u> Owners of businesses working with their crew on the same HUD-assisted job site may certify to the payment of their own federal wages in conjunction with the prevailing wages paid to their employees. This exception to compliance standards <u>does</u> <u>not</u> suggest that such owners are not likewise entitled to prevailing wages for their labor. Rather, it accepts the wage payment certification on weekly payroll reports by the owner of his/her own wages as that certification accompanies the certification offered for payment of prevailing wages to his/her employees. On weekly payroll reports, include the owner's name, identifying him/her as "owner," and the daily and total hours worked on the covered project for the week. Omit the Rate of Pay and Amount Earned.
- D. <u>Owner-operators of Power Equipment</u> Frequently, owner-operators of power equipment (e.g., backhoes, front-end loaders) will contract for services at a rate for both "man and machine." In these cases, the owner-operator includes liability, equipment maintenance, and salary in an hourly or contract rate for services. Because of the prevalence of such practice and the inherent difficulty in ascribing costs for liability and maintenance costs verses hourly labor salary, HUD and its program clients may accept a combined ("man and machine") hourly rate on the responsible contractor's certified payroll provided that such hourly rate may not be less than the rate on the wage determination for the respective power equipment operator. Note: Owner-operators of power equipment, like self-employed mechanics, may not submit their own payrolls certifying to the payment of their own wage but must be carried on the responsible contractor's certified payroll report. Include the name, work classification, and actual hours worked. Upon completion of the contract, verify the pay by taking the amount paid to the sub-contractor (documented with copies of all invoices identified for this job) and divide by the hours reported on the certified payrolls. Compare the actual hourly wage rate with the rate in the Wage Determination. If the actual hourly wage is less than the Davis-Bacon Wage Rate, collect and disburse the wage underpayments.
- E. <u>"Owner Operator" Truck Drivers</u> A USDOL administration policy excludes bona fide <u>owner-operators of trucks</u> who are independent contractors from Davis-Bacon/CWHSSA provisions concerning their own hours of work and rate(s) of pay. These <u>truck "owner-operators"</u> can certify to their own weekly payrolls **but** the payrolls do not need to show the hours worked or rates allegedly paid only the notation "Owner-operator." **Note** that any laborers or mechanics, including truck drivers, employed by the owner-operator/independent contractor are subject to Davis-Bacon/CWHSSA provisions in the usual manner.

This policy **does not** pertain to owner-operator of other equipment such as backhoes, bulldozers, cranes and scrapers (i.e., power equipment as noted in the paragraph titled "Owner-operators of Power Equipment," above).

<u>"Contractor's" Truck Drivers</u> Based on the decision made in the Midway Excavating trial, (Building and Construction Trades Department, AFL-CIO vs. USDOL Wage Appeals Board "Midway") <u>truck</u> <u>drivers employed by contractors</u> are only covered by federal wage requirements when they are performing labor on the site of the work. (e.g. if the UGLG is building a highway and the truck driver is loading, unloading, spreading, or driving back and forth on the site, then the truck driver is covered). Hauling materials to or from the site, if not performed on the site, is not covered time. HUD has advised that they currently believe unloaded are likewise not covered.

F. <u>Determining Proper Classification for Various Work</u> - Questions as to the proper classification of a laborer or mechanic for various types of work are resolved by making an area-practice determination. In determining the proper classification for work performed on a project, it is immaterial whether the contractor is union or nonunion.

On projects where the federal wage rate for the classifications in question within the applicable wage determination is based on negotiated rates, the prevailing practice concerning work performed in those classifications is to follow the practice observed on projects built by contractors who are a signatory to the collective bargaining agreements. Therefore, unless there is a jurisdictional dispute between the crafts, the duties ascribed to any job classification will be the same as those outlined in the appropriate collective bargaining agreements. If the collective

bargaining agreements are silent on this issue, the local unions involved must be consulted. Conversely, in areas where open shop (non-union) rates are determined to prevail for the classifications in question, those prevailing job practices followed on projects by open shop contractors in the same area become area practice.

- G. <u>Helpers</u> The classification of Helper in any trade will be very difficult to have approved by the USDOL. If the contractor wants to pursue a helper classification through the USDOL, they should contact the Labor Standards Specialist at DOA.
- H. <u>Relatives</u> There are no exceptions made in the enforcement of Davis-Bacon on the basis of family relationship for relatives who are performing the work of laborers or mechanics. They **must be paid the federal wage rate for the classification of work performed and be included on the certified payrolls.**
- I. <u>Volunteers</u> HUD allows for the waiver of Davis-Bacon wage rates for volunteers that are **not otherwise employed** at any time of the work for which the individual volunteers. Contact DOA's Labor Standards Specialist for more details if the community plans on using volunteers on the construction site.
- J. <u>Job Corps Workers</u> USDOL staff in Washington, DC has informed HUD staff that Job Corps workers are <u>not</u> exempt from Davis-Bacon wage when they are working on a job subject to the Davis-Bacon Act.
- K. <u>Employees of a Governmental Body</u>-The USDOL has taken the position that the prevailing wage requirements <u>does not</u> apply to employees of a state or political subdivision of a state, but shall apply to employees of a private contractor who is sub-contractor of the state or political subdivision. This rule does not apply to the Public Housing Authority (PHA) employees under the U.S. Housing Act of 1937 (see paragraph A. in this section). Employees of utilities are exempt providing they are only extending existing service to the property.
- L. <u>Employees Performing Work in More than One Classification</u> (Split Classification) if the UGLG/contractor has employees who perform work in more than one trade during a work week, it can pay the wage rates specified for each work classification in which work was performed **only** if maintaining accurate time records showing the amount of time spent in each classification. If the UGLG does not maintain accurate time records, it must pay these employees the highest wage rate of all the classifications of work performed. **Work, which is normally performed as part of the mechanic's craft, is not separable.**
- M. <u>Laborers and Mechanics Definition</u> The terms "laborers" and "mechanics" are construed to include at least those workers whose duties are manual or physical in nature as distinguished from mental or managerial. Since the classifications of laborers and mechanics to who specified wage rates are payable are identified in the Davis-Bacon wage rate, there is ordinarily no need to distinguish between laborers and mechanics. However, mechanics are generally considered to include any worker who uses tools, or who is performing the work of a trade.
- N. <u>Precutting of Parts and Prefabrication of Assemblies</u> The precutting of parts and/or the prefabrication of assemblies are not covered unless conducted in connection with and at the site of the project, or in a temporary plant set up elsewhere solely to supply the needs of the project.
- O. <u>Supply and Installation Contracts</u> -The manufacturing or furnishing of materials, articles, supplies, or equipment is not subject to prevailing wages unless conducted in connection with and at the site of the project, or in a temporary plant set up elsewhere solely to meet the needs of the project.
- P. <u>Start of Construction</u> "Start of Construction," as that term is used in connection with labor standards and prevailing wage requirements, means the beginning of initial site clearance and preparation, provided those activities are pursued diligently and are followed without appreciable delay by other construction activity.
- Q. <u>Site of Work</u> The "site of work" is limited to the physical place or places where the construction called for in the contract will remain when work on it has been completed and to other adjacent or

nearby property used by the contractor in such construction which can reasonably be said to be included in the "site" because of proximity. **Operations of a commercial or material supplier established in the proximity of but not on the active site of work <u>prior to the opening of bids</u> are <u>not</u> covered by the Act even if dedicated exclusively to the federal project for a time.**

- R. <u>Fringe Benefits Funded Plans</u> A contractor may credit contributions for "bona fide" fringe benefits regardless of whether the USDOL has found the particular benefits to be prevailing in the area. Such fringe benefits must be "bona fide." Ordinarily, bona fide benefits are those common to the construction industry and are paid directly to the employee in cash or into a fund, plan, or program on the employee's behalf. Contractors may take credit for contributions made under such conventional plans without requesting approval of the USDOL.
- S. <u>Fringe Benefits Unfunded Plans</u> Where fringe benefit plans are not of the conventional type, it will be necessary for the USDOL to determine if the benefits are "bona fide." Contractors seeking approval of unfounded plans must obtain approval from the USDOL. Contact DOA for more details.
- T. Fringe Benefits General
 - 1. Contributions to funded plans must be made at least quarterly.
 - 2. When the cash paid and the per-hour contribution for benefits do not equal the total rate set forth in the wage determination, the difference must be paid to the employee in cash.
 - 3. Fringe benefits must be paid for straight time and overtime; however, <u>fringe benefits are not</u> <u>included when computing the overtime rate</u>.
 - 4. Employees who are excluded from funded plans for whatever reason must be paid fringe benefits in cash.
 - 5. **Note:** Vacation and sick leave plans are generally unfunded, paid from the contractor's own account, and require USDOL approval before a contractor takes credit toward meeting the fringe benefit obligation.
 - 6. In determining the cash equivalent credit for fringe benefits payments, the period of time to be used is the period covered by the contribution. For example, if an employer contributes to a plan on a weekly basis, the total hours worked each week (federal and nonfederal) by each employee should be divided into the contribution made by the employer.
 - 7. Acceptable fringe benefits include the following: medical or hospital care; pensions on retirement or death; compensation for injuries or illness resulting from occupational activity; or insurance to provide any of the foregoing, unemployment benefits, life insurance, disability and sickness insurance, accident insurance, vacation and holiday pay, defrayment of cost of apprenticeship or other similar programs, or other bona fide fringe benefits; but only where the contractor to sub-contractor is not required by other federal, state, or local law to provide any of such benefits. The Act excludes fringe benefits that a contractor or sub-contractor is obligated to provide under other federal, state, or local law. No credit may be taken for such benefits. For example, payment for workmen's compensation insurance under either a compulsory or elective state statute is not considered payments for fringe benefits under the Act. Payments made for travel, subsistence, or to industry promotion funds are not normally payments for fringe benefits under the Act.

No type of fringe benefits is eligible for consideration as a so-call unfunded plan unless:

- a. It could be reasonably anticipated to provide benefits described in the act;
- b. It represents a commitment that can be legally enforced;
- c. It is carried out under a financially responsible plan or program; and

BCD CDBG Implementation Handbook

- d. The plan or program providing the benefits has been communicated in writing to the laborers and mechanics affected.
- U. <u>Summer Youth Employment</u> Youth who are bona fide students and part of a bona fide "youth opportunity program" may be employed on Davis-Bacon projects on a temporary basis during the summer months and paid below the predetermined Davis-Bacon rates. USDOL All Agency Memoranda #71 and #96 provide policy guidance in this area. HUD requires that the following stipulations be met before summer youth may be employed at less than Davis-Bacon rates:
 - 1. Where collective bargaining agreements representing workers performing similar or related activities at the worksite to which youth are out stationed exists, the union or unions representing those workers must provide concurrence as to the design of the employment project and the use of the youth;
 - 2. Such employment must be provided in accord with statutory safety and minimum wage requirements (both state and federal);
 - 3. Competent supervision must be provided to all youth employment on the project worksites. Ratios of youth to such supervisors should be no greater than four-to-one.

In order to ensure that the administration of summer youth employment complies with USDOL policies and regulations, request for exceptions to the application of Davis-Bacon must be made to the HUD Field Office Labor Relations Staff who will advise the requesting contractor of its decision. The specific provisions of the agreement (between management and labor) or the plan of employment must be submitted to the Department of Labor, Wage and Hour and Public Contracts Division, for enforcement purposes. The HUD Field Office Labor Relations Staff will send such plans to the Headquarters Office of Labor Relations.

- V. <u>Non-Covered Job Classifications</u> Workers performing the normal duties of the following job classifications are not subject to Davis-Bacon federal wage requirements:
 - 1. Project Superintendent.
 - 2. Project Engineer.
 - 3. Project Foreman, as distinguished from a working foreman (working foremen, who devote more than 20 percent of their time during the workweek to mechanic or laborer duties, are laborers and mechanics for the time spent and must be paid the applicable rate for the hours so worked).
 - 4. Watchman.
 - 5. Water Carrier.
 - 6. Messenger, Clerical Workers.

<u>Financing of Construction Work – CDBG</u> - Laborers and mechanics employed by contractors and sub-contractors on construction work financed in whole or in part with Title I assistance are subject to Davis-Bacon wage rates under Section 110 of Title I. To the extent that Part 570 requires broader Davis-Bacon coverage, e.g., on construction work "assisted" under that Part, the regulations shall govern unless an individual waiver is requested and granted by the Assistant Secretary for Community Planning and Development. The use of Title I funds for any of the following items is an example of financing construction work, and Davis-Bacon wage rates shall apply to all construction work performed on the building or property in question: construction loans or grants; payment for construction materials; payment of interest (or part of the interest) on a construction loan; payment of construction loan origination fees; provisions of a Title I funded permanent loan, mortgage or grant on a structure constructed with a private construction; Title I

funded "collateral" or "default" accounts established with the lending bank which receive no interest or less than the interest payable on demand accounts. Questions as to whether a use of Title I funds constitutes financing of construction work shall be referred to HUD headquarters for determination.

- W. <u>Technical/Maintenance Wage Rates Public Housing</u> Section 12 of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937 requires that wages prevailing in the locality shall be paid to all architects, technical engineers, draftsmen, and technicians employed in the development, and all maintenance laborers and mechanics employed in the operation of the project. Such wages are determined or adopted by HUD.
- X. <u>Payment of Low- and Moderate-Income (LMI) assessments</u> In some projects federal funds are used to pay special assessments of LMI households, where those assessments are for the purpose of paying for a public improvement. This use of federal funds invokes the Federal Labor Standards Provisions and makes the construction subject to Davis-Bacon wage rates.
- Y. <u>Piecework</u> Roofers and dry-wall hangers are sometimes paid by piecework. Piecework is work paid for at a fixed rate (piece rate) per piece of work done.

Applicability

The Project or Program to which the construction work covered by this contract pertains is being assisted by the United States of America and the following Federal Labor Standards Provisions are included in this Contract pursuant to the provisions applicable to such Federal assistance.

A. 1. (i) Minimum Wages. All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work, will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR Part 3), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics. Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under Section I(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv); also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs, which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period.

Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided, That the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates conformed under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible, place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

(ii) (a) Any class of laborers or mechanics which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. HUD shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefor only when the following criteria have been met: (1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and

(2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and

(3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.

(b) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and HUD or its designee agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by HUD or its designee to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, D.C. 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or will notify HUD or its designee within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB control number 1215-0140.)

(c) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and HUD or its designee do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), HUD or its designee shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of HUD or its designee, to the Administrator for The Administrator, or an authorized determination. representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or will notify HUD or its designee within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0140.)

(d) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to subparagraphs (1)(ii)(b) or (c) of this paragraph, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.

(iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.

(iv) If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part

of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0140.)

2. Withholding. HUD or its designee shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees and helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee or helper, employed or working on the site of the work, all or part of the wages required by the contract, HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased. HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the contractor, disburse such amounts withheld for and on account of the contractor or subcontractor to the respective employees to whom they The Comptroller General shall make such are due. disbursements in the case of direct Davis-Bacon Act contracts.

3. (i) Payrolls and basic records. Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the work preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work. Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in Section I(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in Section I(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been

communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Numbers 1215-0140 and 1215-0017.)

(ii) (a) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to HUD or its designee if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit the payrolls to the applicant sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to HUD or its designee. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i) except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee (e.g., the last four digits of the employee's social security number). The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site at http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number and current address of each covered worker, and shall provide them upon request to HUD or its designee if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit the payrolls to the applicant sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to HUD or its designee, the contractor, or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this subparagraph for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and social security numbers to the prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submission to HUD or its designee. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0149.)

(b) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:

(1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(3)(ii), the appropriate information is being maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), and that such information is correct and complete;

(2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in 29 CFR Part 3;

(3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.

(c) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by subparagraph A.3.(ii)(b).

(d) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section 231 of Title 31 of the United States Code.

The contractor or subcontractor shall make the (iii) records required under subparagraph A.3.(i) available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of HUD or its designee or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.

4. Apprentices and Trainees.

(i) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who

is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

(ii) Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant ', to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Anv employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable program is approved.

(iii) Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under 29 CFR Part 5 shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR Part 30.

5. Compliance with Copeland Act requirements. The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3 which are incorporated by reference in this contract

6. Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor will insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in subparagraphs 1 through 11 in this paragraph A and such other clauses as HUD or its designee may by appropriate instructions require, and a copy of the applicable prevailing wage decision, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in this paragraph.

7. Contract termination; debarment. A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.

8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements. All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract

9. Disputes concerning labor standards. Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and HUD or its designee, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.

10. (i) Certification of Eligibility. By entering into this contract the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be

awarded HUD contracts or participate in HUD programs pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.

(ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be awarded HUD contracts or participate in HUD programs pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.

(iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001. Additionally, U.S. Criminal Code, Section 1 01 0, Title 18, U.S.C., "Federal Housing Administration transactions", provides in part: "Whoever, for the purpose of . . . influencing in any way the action of such Administration.... makes, utters or publishes any statement knowing the same to be false..... shall be fined not more than \$5,000 or imprisoned not more than two years, or both."

11. Complaints, Proceedings, or Testimony by Employees. No laborer or mechanic to whom the wage, salary, or other labor standards provisions of this Contract are applicable shall be discharged or in any other manner discriminated against by the Contractor or any subcontractor because such employee has filed any complaint or instituted or caused to be instituted any proceeding or has testified or is about to testify in any proceeding under or relating to the labor standards applicable under this Contract to his employer.

B. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. The provisions of this paragraph B are applicable where the amount of the prime contract exceeds \$100,000. As used in this paragraph, the terms "laborers" and "mechanics" include watchmen and guards.

(1) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which the individual is employed on such work to work in excess of 40 hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in such workweek.

(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, in the sum of \$10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of 40 hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in sub paragraph (1) of this paragraph.

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. HUD or its designee shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contract, or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act which is held by the same prime contractor such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in subparagraph (2) of this paragraph.

(4) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in subparagraph (1) through (4) of this paragraph and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in subparagraphs (1) through (4) of this paragraph.

C. Health and Safety. The provisions of this paragraph C are applicable where the amount of the prime contract exceeds \$100,000.

(1) No laborer or mechanic shall be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to his health and safety as determined under construction safety and health standards promulgated by the Secretary of Labor by regulation.

(2) The Contractor shall comply with all regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Title 29 Part 1926 and failure to comply may result in imposition of sanctions pursuant to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, (Public Law 91-54, 83 Stat 96). <u>40 USC 3701 et seq</u>.

(3) The contractor shall include the provisions of this paragraph in every subcontract so that such provisions will be binding on each subcontractor. The contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontractor as the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development or the Secretary of Labor shall direct as a means of enforcing such provisions.

EXHIBIT III

Minimum Qualifications

- A. The person(s)/firm(s) must have successfully provided engineering services for a minimum of 2 similar type projects. The person/firm may not be selected if there have been any unresolved issues relative to the services provided.
- B. The principal responsible for coordination of the engineering must have a minimum of 3 years of experience with this specific type of work.
- C. The principal responsible for provided engineering must have a minimum of 3 years of experience with the CDBG Program *or* other federal/state funded programs or projects.
- D. The person(s)/firm(s) should submit references as to their professional qualifications from 3 previous clients for which the person(s)/firm(s) has/have performed work (include contact name, title, firm/organization/government name, email address, mailing address and telephone number).

EXHIBIT IV

Selection Rating System

1.	Project Coordinator/Lead's Experience A. 3 or more years of experience with CDBG or other federal/state programs	<u>Maximum 20 Points</u> 20 Points
	 B. 2 years of experience C. 1 year of experience D. Less than 1 year of experience E. No experience 	15 Points 10 Points 5 Points 0 Points
2.	Firm's Project Completion Background A. Completion of 3 or more previous, similar type projects within	<u>Maximum 20 Points</u> 20 Points
C D	proposed time frame & budgetB. Completion of 2 similar projectsC. Completion of 1 similar projectD. Working on 1 similar project; not completedE. No work on a similar project	15 Points 10 Points 5 Points 0 Points
3.	 References from Similar Projects A. Respondent lists 3 previous clients with similar projects and all references give excellent response on quality of service 	<u>Maximum 10 Points</u> 10 Points
	 B. Respondent lists at least 1 previous client C. Respondent lists no previous references 	5 Points 0 Points
4.	 Firm's Familiarity with Community's Needs A. Firm is thoroughly familiar with community(ies) with similar population and characteristics to Village of Laps Rock 	<u>Maximum 20 Points</u> 20 Points
	 Village of Lone Rock B. Firm is somewhat familiar with community(ies) with similar population and characteristics to Village of Lone Rock 	10 Points
	Village of Lone RockC. Firm is unfamiliar with community(ies) with similar population and characteristics to Village of Lone Rock	0 Points
5.	Responsiveness to Specifications of Project/RFPA. Needs of project are fully addressed in ProposalB. Needs of project are somewhat addressed in ProposalC. Needs of project are not addressed/resolved in Proposal	<u>Maximum 20 Points</u> 20 Points 10 Points 0 Points
6.	Cost Effectiveness A. Budget/proposal includes 3 or more cost effectiveness	<u>Maximum 10 Points</u> 10 Points
	Components B. Budget/proposal includes 1-2 cost effectiveness components C. Budget/proposal does not include cost effectiveness components	5 Points 0 Points
7.	Budget - (See Exhibit I) A. Budget within Village of Lone Rock Park Project capacity as proposed	<u>Maximum 10 Points</u> 10 Points

	 B. Budget slightly above Village of Lone Rock Park Project capacity as proposed; potentially feasible with modest adjustment C. Budget not reasonably within Village of Lone Rock Park Project capacity as proposed; would require extensive adjustment to be feasible 	5 Points 0 Points
8.	Minority or Women Business Enterprise, Disadvantaged Business Enterprise, or Section 3/LMI Firm* A. Firm is MBE, WBE, DBE or Section 3/LMI firm B. Firm is not MBE, WBE, DBE or Section 3/LMI firm	<u>Maximum 5 Points</u> 5 Points 0 Points
9.	Small Business Firm A. Firm is a small business B. Firm is not a small business	<u>Maximum 5 Points</u> 5 Points 0 Points

MAXIMUM TOTAL POINTS: 120 POINTS

Note to Responders of RFP:

Proposal submittals are to be organized to address the submittal specifications listed in the RFP and the evaluation criteria listed above.

*MBE/WBE/DBE and Section 3/LMI Firms are Defined As Follows:

Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) – Business with at least 51% ownership and control held by minority person(s).

Woman Business Enterprise (WBE) – Business with at least 51% ownership and control held by a woman or women.

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (MBE) – Small business with at least 51% ownership and control held by person(s) classified as "disadvantaged" individual(s) according to the Wisconsin Department of Transportation standards (<u>https://wisconsindot.gov/Documents/doing-bus/civil-rights/dbe/dbe-program-brochure.pdf</u>)

Section 3/LMI Firm – Firm with at least 51% ownership interest and control held by low-to-moderate income (LMI) Wisconsin resident(s) (LMI according to HUD LMI limits for the County in which the owner resides); *or* at least 30% of the firm's full-time permanent employees are Wisconsin LMI residents (LMI based on the HUD LMI income limits for the County in which they live); *or* the owner(s) of the firm commit(s) to awarding at least 25% of its subcontracting dollar amount (i.e., 25% of subcontracting, based on the total amount of subcontracts awarded) to Section 3/LMI firms for the CDBG project.

Small Business will be defined as less than \$16,500,000 in annual revenue as established by the SBA